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Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited

VISION STATEMENT

The vision of Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited is to
contribute positively to the Socio-Economic growth of Pakistan through
business and industrial pursuits endeavoring to achieve excellence in all

spheres of such activity with effective and efficient management.

MISSION STATEMENT

Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited becomes a truly
professional organization, achieve higher quality standards, utilize
maximum capacity, capture expansion opportunities and becomes a least

cost operator amongst its competitors.

We will strive to continue as a successful Company, make profit and thus

create value for our shareholders, customers, suppliers and employees.

QUALITY AND ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

Our aim is to achieve the leadership of textile and spinning industry
through quality products according to customer satisfaction. We thrive to
achieve the above through the following measures:

1) Acquisition of quality raw material.

2) Manufacturing of high quality yarn as per customer satisfaction.

3) Continuous training and guidance to employees regarding quality and
environment.

4) Continuous improvement, close watch and control in production process and
environment.

5) Follow up of the system, regarding international quality and environmental laws.

6) Control of pollution discharge from industrial process.
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NOTICE OF 68" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 68™ Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held on Monday October 27, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at its registered office,
Allawasaya Square, Vehari Road, Multan, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To confirm minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting (EOGM) of the
Company held on November 11, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the annual audited Financial Statements of the
Company together with the Chairman’s’ Review Report, Directors’ and
Auditors’ Reports thereon for the year ended June 30, 2025.

As required under Section 223 of the Companies Act, 2017 and pursuant to
SRO. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, the annual Financial Statements of
the Company have been posted on the company’s website, which can be
viewed/ downloaded using the following web link and QR enabled code:

[OE=te O

https://www.allawasaya.com/annual reports.html

[OE A8

3. To appoint, auditors and fix their remuneration for the financial year ending
June 30, 2026. A notice pursuant to the provisions of sub-section (2) of section
246 of the Companies Act, 2017 is hereby given that the Board, upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, has proposed the name of M/s
Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, Lahore after obtaining their consent for
appointment as external auditors of the Company. The retiring auditors being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4, To consider and approve the sale of land of the Company located at Dunya
Pur Road, Basti Dogran & Suigas Road, Multan and pass the following
Ordinary Resolution(s), with or without modifications, additions or
deletions, in terms of the provisions of section 183(3)(a) of the Companies
Act, 2017:

‘RESOLVED THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded for the disposal and sale of company’s land measuring 121
Kanals 12 Marlas 21 Yards located at Dunya Pur Road, Basti Dogran &
Suigas Road, Multan.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby
authorized and empowered to delegate its powers to the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and/or the Executive Directors on such terms and conditions,
they may deem fit and to act on behalf of the company to handle all
matters and perform all the acts, in this regard in order to implement and in
connection with the disposal of the above mentioned property and to
undertake all the related transactions contemplated, which shall include,

but not be limited to:
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a)

b)

d)

conducting negotiations, obtaining quotations etc., with interested parties in
such manner and on such terms and conditions as are in the best interest
of the company and its shareholders and which secure the best available
market price;

selling the concerned property to any individual, firm(s)/ partnership,
bank(s) or private/ public limited companies or organization(s) or to any
other person and, for that purpose, negotiating with financial institution(s)
for vacating lien/ charges against assets if any, entering into an agreement
to sell, sale deed or any other agreement with the buyer(s) or any other
person, receiving the sale consideration, executing, preparing and signing
any sale deed, conveyance deed and/ or transfer documents in favour of
the buyer(s) or any other person by representing the same before all
parties and authorities concerned and admitting execution thereof;

representing before the Sub-Registrar or any other competent authority
and getting any sale deed or other document(s) registered and collecting
consideration amount in respect of the concerned property, and

generally performing and executing in respect of the subject matter all
lawful deeds, agreements, acts and things as they may think fit and proper
in order to implement and complete the transaction(s).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive Officer and/ or any
Executive Directors be and are hereby jointly or severally, authorized and
empowered to take all necessary steps, make the requisite decisions from
time to time, do all such acts, deeds and things, obtain necessary
approvals, and to execute and deliver all such deeds, agreements,
declarations, undertakings and guarantees, including any ancillary
document thereto or provide any such documentation for and on behalf
and in the name of the company as may be necessary or required or as
they or any of them may think fit for or in connection with or incidental for
the purposes of carrying out the proposed Ordinary Resolution(s).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer of the company
be and is hereby authorized to take all actions incidental or ancillary
thereto with regard to the contemplated sale transaction.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered to
agree upon modification in these resolutions that may be directed/ required
by the SECP/ PSX or any other competent authority/ regulator without the
need for any further approval of the shareholders.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and/ or any the
Executive Directors be and is hereby jointly or severally authorized to
comply with the statutory requirements with the SECP, PSX and/ or any
other relevant regulatory body and do all such acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary under the law in this regard.
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ALSO RESOLVED THAT certified copies of resolutions be communicated
to the concerned authorities and shall remain in force until notice in writing
to the contrary be given.”

(A Statement of material facts under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act,
2017 relating to this Special Business to be transacted at the AGM is annexed
with this Notice of AGM.)

OTHER BUSINESS:

5. To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

Sd/-
(MUHAMMAD ISMAIL)
COMPANY SECRETARY

Multan, October 06, 2025

NOTES:

1.

The Shares Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21-10-2025 to 27-10-
2025 (both days inclusive) transfers received in order at the office of the Company’s Shares
Registrar, M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, H.M. House, 7-Bank Square,
Lahore by the close of business on October 20, 2025 will be treated in time.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting, may appoint any other member as a
proxy to attend, speak and vote on behalf of him/her. A proxy must be a member. Proxy
Forms along with copies of CNICs of the member, his/ her proxy and their witness duly
stamped with Rs.50/- revenue stamp, signed and witnessed by one person; in order to be
valid must be received at the Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before
the time of holding the meeting.

Any individual beneficial owners of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at the meeting must bring
his/her CNIC or passport to prove his/her identity and the proxy shall produce his/ her original
CNIC or passport. In case of corporate members, the Boards' resolution or power of attorney
with specimen signatures of the nominee shall require to be produced at the time of meeting.
Members are requested to submit an attested photocopy of their valid Computerized
National Identity Cards (CNICs) as per SECP's direction, if not provided earlier and also
communicate to the Company immediately of any change in their addresses.

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through its Circular No.4 dated February
15, 2021 has directed the listed companies to ensure the participation of members in general
meeting through electronic means as a regular feature in addition to hold physical meetings.
Accordingly, shareholders and their proxies who are interested to participate in the meeting
through video link are requested to email their Name, Folio Number/ CDC Account Number,
Mobile Number, Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Number and Number of Shares
held in their name with subject “Registration for AWTX AGM” along with valid copy of both
sides of CNIC/ Passport, attested copy of Board Resolution/ Power of Attorney (in case of
corporate shareholders) at secretary@allawasaya.com or shares@hmaconsultants.com.
Video link and login credentials (ZOOM APPLICATION) will be shared with only those
members and their proxies whose emails, containing all the required particulars, will be
received at least 48 hours before the time of AGM. The Login facility will remain open from
start of the meeting till its proceedings are concluded.
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Pursuant to Section 132(2) and 134(b) of the Companies Act, 2017, members can also avalil
Video Conference facility in (hname of cities where facility can be provided keeping in view
geographical dispersal of members). In this regard please fill the following form and submit to
the registered address of the Company within ten (10) days before holding of annual general
meeting.

I/ We, of , being a member of
ALLAWASAYA TEXTILE AND FINISHING MILLS LIMITED, holder of Ordinary Shares
as per Register Folio No./ CDC A/C No.. hereby opt for Video Conference Facility at

Signature of member

If the Company receives consent from members holding an aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at a geographical location, to participate in the meeting through Video
Conference at least 10 days prior to the date of meeting, the Company will arrange Video
Conference facility in that city subject to availability of such facility in that city.

The SECP, vide Circular No. 2 of 2018 dated February 9, 2018, and S.R.O. 452(1)/2025
dated March 17, 2025, has strictly prohibited companies from offering or distributing gifts,
incentives, or any similar benefits (including but not limited to tokens, coupons, meals, or
takeaway packages) to Members at or in connection with general meetings. In accordance
with Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2017, any non-compliance with these directives
constitutes a punishable offence, and companies found in violation may be subject to
enforcement actions and penalties.

Pursuant to the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 read with Sections 143 and 144
of the Companies Act, 2017 and S.R.O. 451(1)/2025 dated March 13, 2025, Members voting
on items falling under Special Business will be allowed to exercise their right to vote through
postal ballot, that is voting by post or electronic mode, in accordance with the requirements
and procedure contained in the aforesaid Regulations. Detailed procedures for voting by
postal ballot are provided on the ballot paper, while instructions for electronic voting will be
sent to the Members by the Company's Share Registrar. There shall be no voting by show
of hands at the general meeting for items falling under Special Business and Members
who do not cast their vote through electronic voting or postal ballot in advance for the
said items shall only be permitted to cast their vote at the general meeting by way of
ballot paper. The schedule and procedure of Postal Ballot/ Electronic Voting shall be placed
on the Company’s website i.e., www.allawasaya.com within seven (7) days before the
meeting.

Members are requested to update their details together with Name, Folio, Email Address,
Contact Number to the Share Registrar and E-Voting Service Provider of the Company,
M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.) Limited, H.M. House, 7- Bank Square, Lahore by or
before October 26, 2025.

In accordance with Regulation No.11 of the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018, the
Board of the Company has appointed M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, a QCR
rated audit firm who will act as the Scrutinizer of the Company for the purpose of observing
voting procedures for conducting special business of the company and to undertake
responsibilities as defined in Regulation No.11A.
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PROCEDURE FOR E-VOTING

9. Members who intend to exercise their right of vote through e-voting shall send email with
subject “E-Voting Request”’ at shares@hmaconsultants.com and provide their valid CNIC
Numbers, Cell Numbers and Email address on or after October 20, 2025.

10. The web address, login details, and password will be communicated to members
via email and the security codes will be communicated to the members through
Email/ SMS from the web portal of M/s Hameed Majeed Associates (Pvt.)
Limited (E-Voting Service Provider). Those details will be shared with those
members whose name will appear in the Register of Members of the Company by
the close of business on October 20, 2025.

11. Identity of the Members intending to cast vote through e-voting shall be
authenticated through electronic signature or authentication for login.

12. Members can cast their vote for all Agenda Items online at any time from October
21, 2025 09:00 a.m. to October 26, 2025 till 05:00 p.m.

13. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, he/ she shall not be allowed to
change it subsequently.

PROCEDURE FOR VOTING THROUGH BALLOT PAPER

14, Members must opt for voting through postal ballot for all businesses classified as special
business under the Act. For convenience of the Members, Ballot Paper will be available
on the Company’s website www.allawasaya.com within stipulated time to download.

15. Members must ensure that the duly filled and signed Ballot Paper, alongwith a copy of
valid Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) should reach the Chairperson of the
meeting through post at the Company’s registered address, Allawasaya Square, Vehari
Road, Multan or email at chairperson@allawasaya.com one day before the AGM i.e.,
October 26, 2025 before 05:00 p.m. A postal ballot received after this date and time shall
not be considered for voting.

16. Please note that in case of any dispute in voting including the casting of more than one
vote, the Chairperson shall be the deciding authority.

STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS UNDER SECTION 134(3) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2017 REGARDING SPECIAL BUSINESS

This statement sets out the material facts concerning the Special Business to be
transacted at the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of Allawasaya Textile and Finishing
Mills Limited (the “Company”) to be held on Monday, October 27, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. The
approval of the members of the Company will be sought for the following:

Item No.4 of the Agenda

The Board of Directors have proposed in its meeting held on October 03, 2025 to dispose
121 Kanals 12 Marlas & 21 Yards of Company’s Freehold Land situated at Dunya Pur
Road, Basti Dogran & Suigas Road, Multan. The sale proceeds / revenue generated
would be used, for repayment of liabilities of the Company owed to its creditors as well as
to fulfill the working capital requirements and upgradation / installation of plant /
machinery. This will improve performance of the Company, inter alia, by providing
additional liquidity to the Company for utilization of funds towards profitable business
activities.
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Purpose of the sale

The purpose of the sale of land is to pay the pressing liabilities and fulfill financial
obligations and also to provide liquidity to the company in the form of working capital and
upgradation of plant / machinery to operate at optimum level to achieve better results and
add value for shareholders. This will reduce finance cost and allow the company to
counter the multiple challenges being faced.

Details as per SRO 423(1)/2018

Special Business relating to members' approval for sale, lease or disposal of the
undertaking or sizeable part thereof or sale / disposal of subsidiary that is to be
transacted under clause (a) or (b) of sub-section (3) of section 183 of the Act.

The material facts required to be disclosed under S.R.O 423 (1) /2018 dated April 3, 2018
when the Board of Directors proposes to sell, lease or otherwise dispose of an
‘'undertaking' or a 'sizeable part" thereof are given hereunder:

S.NO. SRO Description | Company Details
i) Detail of assets to be sold, leased or disposed of shall include the following:
a) Description/Name of asset. Company proposes to sale its unutilized free hold

Land situated at Dunya Pur Road, Basti Dogran &
Suigas Road, Multan.

Total Area of Land is 121 Kanals12 Marlas 21

Yards.

b) Acquisition date of the asset. Land purchased by the Company in the
years1969 & 1970.

C) Cost. Land: Rs.482,900/-

d) Revalued amount and date of revaluation (if As per valuation report of the Registered Valuer

applicable. namely:

M/s.Harvester Services (Private) Limited dated
30/06/2025
Land: Rs.851,000,000/-

e) Book value. Land: Rs.851,000,000/-

f) Approximate current market price/fair value. The Current market price / fair value is expected

to be in line or more than the re-valued amount
as stated above. The exact amount, however, will
be ascertained at the time of finalizing the
transactions with the potential buyer(s).

s)] In case of sale, if the expected sale price is N/A
lower than book value or fair value, then the
reasons thereof;

h) In case of lease of assets, tenure, lease N/A
rentals, increment rate; mode/ basis of
determination of lease rentals; and other
important terms and conditions of the lease;

ii) Additional information in case of disposal of land:

a) i) Location; i) Dunya Pur Road, Basti Dogran & Suigas Road,
i) Nature of land (e.g. commercial, agriculture | Multan.
etc); and i) Industrial/ Agriculture/ Residential

iii) Area proposed to be sold.
iii) 121 Kanals 12 Marlas 21 Yards
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b) The proposed manner of disposal of the said The Property will be disposed through

assets. negotiations with the buyer(s) through person(s)
authorized by the Board of Directors in a way that
is most beneficial for the shareholders and the

Company.
C) In case the company has identified a buyer, The Company shall exercise all reasonable
who is a related party the fact shall be diligence in identifying buyer(s) willing to pay the
disclosed in the statement of material facts. fair market value and completing the

transaction(s) in the best interest of the Company
and its shareholders. As a result, there is no
related party that requires disclosure in the
statement of material facts.

iii) Purpose of the sale, lease along with following details:
a) Utilization of the proceeds received from the The proceeds will be utilized inter alia for
transaction. repayment of liabilities of the company, including

creditors & other pressing liabilities, up-gradation
of plant and machinery, repayment of financial
institutions, extension in solar system, repayment
of Directors’ Loans, improve the working capital
requirement of the Company, additional
requirement of liquidity for full capacity operations
and requirement of funds for polyester viscose
fabric manufacturing.

The utilization of funds will improve the
profitability significantly.

b) Effect on operational capacity of the company, | The proposed transactions will ensure 100%
if any; and operational capacity of the Company and its
liquidity will improve and thus will utilize full
capacity for operations towards profitability of the
Company and shareholders.

c) Quantitative and qualitative benefits expected The proceeds will enable the Company to
to accrue to the members. improve liquidity and quantitative performance,
reduction in Bank loans (current liabilities),
improvement in current ratio that will eventually
lead to better financial performance by the
Company and contribute towards increase
earnings per share of the Company and the
shareholders' value.

Nature & Extent of Interest of Directors, directly or indirectly

None of the Directors have any direct or indirect interest in the sale/disposal of the said Properties
of the Company.

Availability of Relevant Documents

Copies of the documents pertaining to foregoing Special Business are available for inspection at
the Registered Office of the Company during normal office working hours from the date of
publication of the Notice till the date of the AGM.

Undertaking by the Directors

The Board of Directors have carried out necessary due diligence for the proposed transaction.
Expected time of completion of the transaction

It is expected that transaction will be completed within one year from the date of passing of
Ordinary Resolution(s) at the General Meeting.
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BALLOT PAPER FOR VOTING THROUGH POST

For voting through post for the Special Business Agenda Item No.4 at the Annual
General Meeting of M/s Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited (“the Company”)
to be held on Monday October 27, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. at its registered office situated at
Allawasaya Square, Vehari Road, Multan.

Contact details of the Chairperson where Ballot Paper may be sent:
Business Address: The Chairperson, Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited,

Allawasaya Square, Vehari Road, Multan. Phone Nos.(061)4233624-26.
Email Address: chairperson@allawasaya.com

Name of shareholder/joint shareholders

Registered Address

Folio No./ CDC Account

Number of shares held

CNIC/ Passport Number (copy to be attached)

Additional Information and enclosures (In case
of representative of body corporate, corporation
and Federal Government.)

Resolution for Agenda Item No. 4:

To consider and approve the sale of land of the Company located at Dunya Pur Road,
Basti Dogran & Suigas Road, Multan and pass the following Ordinary Resolution(s),
with or without modifications, additions or deletions, in terms of Section 183(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2017:

‘RESOLVED THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby
accorded for the disposal and sale of company’s land measuring 121
Kanals 12 Marlas 21 Yards located at Dunya Pur Road, Basti Dogran &
Suigas Road, Multan.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is hereby
authorized and empowered to delegate its powers to the Chief Executive
Officer (CEO) and/or the Executive Directors on such terms and conditions,
they may deem fit and to act on behalf of the company to handle all
matters and perform all the acts, in this regard in order to implement and in
connection with the disposal of the above mentioned property and to
undertake all the related transactions contemplated, which shall include,
but not be limited to:

a) conducting negotiations, obtaining quotations etc., with interested parties in
such manner and on such terms and conditions as are in the best interest
of the company and its shareholders and which secure the best available
market price;
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b)

d)

selling the concerned property to any individual, firm(s)/ partnership,
bank(s) or private/ public limited companies or organization(s) or to any
other person and, for that purpose, negotiating with financial institution(s)
for vacating lien/ charges against assets if any, entering into an agreement
to sell, sale deed or any other agreement with the buyer(s) or any other
person, receiving the sale consideration, executing, preparing and signing
any sale deed, conveyance deed and/ or transfer documents in favour of
the buyer(s) or any other person by representing the same before all
parties and authorities concerned and admitting execution thereof;

representing before the Sub-Registrar or any other competent authority
and getting any sale deed or other document(s) registered and collecting
consideration amount in respect of the concerned property, and

generally performing and executing in respect of the subject matter all
lawful deeds, agreements, acts and things as they may think fit and proper
in order to implement and complete the transaction(s).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT Chief Executive Officer and/ or any
Executive Directors be and are hereby jointly or severally, authorized and
empowered to take all necessary steps, make the requisite decisions from
time to time, do all such acts, deeds and things, obtain necessary
approvals, and to execute and deliver all such deeds, agreements,
declarations, undertakings and guarantees, including any ancillary
document thereto or provide any such documentation for and on behalf
and in the name of the company as may be necessary or required or as
they or any of them may think fit for or in connection with or incidental for
the purposes of carrying out the proposed Ordinary Resolution(s).

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer of the company
be and is hereby authorized to take all actions incidental or ancillary
thereto with regard to the contemplated sale transaction.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board be and is hereby empowered to
agree upon modification in these resolutions that may be directed/ required
by the SECP/ PSX or any other competent authority/ regulator without the
need for any further approval of the shareholders.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive Officer and/ or any the
Executive Directors be and is hereby jointly or severally authorized to
comply with the statutory requirements with the SECP, PSX and/ or any
other relevant regulatory body and do all such acts, deeds and things as
may be necessary under the law in this regard.

ALSO RESOLVED THAT certified copies of resolutions be communicated
to the concerned authorities and shall remain in force until notice in writing
to the contrary be given.”
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Instructions for Poll

1. Please indicate your vote by ticking (v) the relevant box.

2. In case if both the boxes are marked as (v'), your poll shall be treated as “Rejected”.

I/we hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the above resolution(s) through postal ballot by

conveying my/our assent or dissent to the above resolution(s) by placing tick (v') mark in the

appropriate box below (delete as appropriate);

I/We dissent to
the Resolutions
(AGAINST)

Sr. No. Nature and Description of resolutions No. of ordinary | I/We assent to
shares for the Resolutions
which votes (FOR)
cast

1| Resolution for Agenda ltem No.4

NOTES:

1.

Dully filled postal ballot should be sent to the Chairperson of Allawasaya
Textile and Finishing Mills Limited, Allawasaya Square, Vehari Road,
Multan or scanned copy of the original Postal Ballot to be emailed at
chairperson@allawasaya.com.

2. Copy of CNIC/ Passport (in case of foreigner) should be enclosed with the
Postal Ballot Form.

3. Postal ballot forms should reach the Chairperson of the meeting on or
before October 26, 2025, upto 05:00 p.m. (last date of receiving postal
ballot). Any postal ballot received after this date, will not be considered for
voting.

4, Signature on postal ballot should match with signature on CNIC / Passport
(in case of foreigner).

5. Incomplete, unsigned, incorrect, defaced, torn, mutilated, over written ballot
paper will be rejected.

6.

This postal ballot paper is also available for download from the website of
the Company at www.allawasaya.com. Shareholders may download the
ballot paper from website or use the same ballot paper published in
newspapers.

Signature of Shareholder(s)/ Proxy Holder(s)/ Authorized Signatory
(in case of corporate entity, please affix company stamp)

Place:

Date:
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CHAIRPERSON’S REVIEW REPORT U/S 192 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2017 FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

| am pleased to present my review report on overall performance of the Board of the
Company for the period ended June 30, 2025. | acknowledge the efforts of the
management of the Company in these challenging times. The Board of Allawasaya Textile
and Finishing Mills Limited carried out its duties in the best interests of the company and
its members.

The Board being responsible for the management of the Company’s affairs and
determining the company’s level of risk tolerance, formulates policies and strategies. The
board is governed by relevant laws and regulations and its obligation, rights,
responsibilities and duties as required and prescribed therein.

| would like to appreciate the overall performance of the Board during the year despite
multiple challenges. They have provided strategic direction to the management and
always remained available for guidance.

Board members are equipped with suitable knowledge, variety of expertise and experience
which is required to successfully govern the business. Further the composition of the
Board depicts reasonable balance of executive and non-executive directors including
females and independent directors who possess the requisite skills and core competence.
The Board and its committees are made up of members who have the expertise as required
by the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. The Board
strictly monitored the performance of its sub-committees. Comprehensive and effective
meetings of the Board resulted in conducive decisions for the Company. In addition to it,
the Board also ensures compliance with all applicable rules and best practices of the
Company.

This year has been most challenging for the Company as overall all economic conditions
were very tough particularly for textile industry. For the very reason, there was a decline
in sales revenue. However the loss after tax reduced significantly when compared with the
after tax loss of last year.

Being Chairperson of the Board of Directors and on behalf of the Board, | express my
gratitude to customers, vendors, dealers, investors, business associates and bankers for
their continued support during the year. | place on record my appreciation of the
commitments and contribution made by the employees at all levels. Our resilience to meet
challenges was made possible by their hard work, solidarity, cooperation and support.

Sd/-
MRS. NUSRAT JAMIL
CHAIRPERSON
Multan, October 03, 2025
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

IN THE NAME OF ALLAH THE MOST BENEFICENT AND THE MERCIFUL

Dear Members,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of the Company, it is our privilege to present before
you the 68th Annual Report on the affairs of your Company along with the audited
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon, for the year ended June 30, 2025.

GENERAL PERFORMANCE:

During the period under report, the performance of your Company remained low and slow
due to global economic uncertainty, rising production costs involving raw material, labour
and energy pricing. These factors have eroded the global competitiveness of Pakistan
Textile Industry. Moreover, the EFS Policy served as the major threat and as a result huge
quantity of high quality imported yarn was dumped at very low prices in the market.
These factors pose serious challenge to the operations of spinning mills/ textile industry of
Pakistan.

There is fierce competition from regional players like Bangladesh, Vietnam and India who
are offering high quality products that too on much competitive prices.

In the face of these challenges, the management remains fully vigilant and committed to
the members of the Company. We are actively addressing to these issues by strategic
planning targeted at resolving these complicated problems being faced by the industry at
large and by the Company in particular. The Company invested heavily into renewable
energy and installed Solar Project to reduce the cost of production to bring viability to the
operations.

OPERATIONS:

The Mills produced Polyester Viscose (PV), Pure Viscose (Staple Yarn) and Polyester-Cotton
(PC) blended yarn throughout the year. The total production of yarn during the year under review
at 20’s count basis was 12,607,114.59 Kgs (actual production 7,159,350.24 Kgs) as compared to
16,183,417.90 Kgs (actual production 9,107,154 Kgs) last year.
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The financial results for the year ended June 30, 2025 along with the comparative figures of the
last year are summarized under the respective heads of Accounts below:

ACCOUNTS:
For the year ended
June 30, 2025

For the year ended
June 30, 2024

Rupees Rupees (Restated)
Revenue from contracts with customers-net 4,353,513,640 6,118,253,956
Cost of goods sold (4,199,933,636) (5,845,216,354)
Gross Profit 153,580,004 273,037,602
Other income 107,147,730 12,969,720
Distribution and marketing expenses (30,510,828) (40,080,030)
Administrative expenses (117,480,851) (94,395,163)
Other expenses (4,448,100) (12,616,555)
Finance Cost (150,342,823) (272,249,300)
Loss before revenue taxes & income tax (42,054,868) (133,333,726)
Revenue taxes (54,418,921) (76,478,174)
Loss before income tax (96,473,789) (209,811,900)
Income tax- net 26,642,513 (39,955,445)
Loss for the year (69,831,276) (249,767,345)
Loss per share- basic and diluted (87.29) (312.21)

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook of the textile sector is expected to remain tough in general. The sector faces
medium term risk due to weak macroeconomic environment globally and locally due to inflation,
ongoing energy crisis and global slump in demand. In this scenario, the whole industry is looking
towards the Government to support the textile industry of Pakistan and help it to become
competitive globally and continue to add its share in the export led growth of the country. Good
corporate Governance, production efficiency and financial discipline will remain top focus by the
management.

The management of the Company is actively addressing the issues and challenges being faced
through strategic measures, aimed at optimizing operations and cost efficiency.

Keeping in view the current scenario of textile sector, management of your Company has been
acting proactively to reduce the controllable costs. As a result, by the grace of Almighty Allah, 3.2

megawatt Solar Project has been commissioned and stands completed. The management is
working tirelessly to further add One Megawatt to the system to further reduce cost.

DIVIDEND

Due to the losses suffered by the Company during the year under report, your Directors propose to

pass over the Dividend this year.
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CREDIT RATING

The Company’s credit rating is maintained as A2 for short term and BBB- for long term
with stable outlook by the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA).

CERTIFICATIONS

Your Directors are pleased to report that your Company is quite successfully maintaining
its following certifications:

1SO 9001:2015
Certification for Quality Management System is not just a piece of paper, it is a whole set
of systems which serves as stepping stone to the wide world of Quality.

1SO 14001:2015

Certification for Environmental Management System which aims to ensure that our
products have the least harmful impact on the environment during production, disposal
and depletion of natural resources.

COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors and management of the Company are aware of their responsibilities under
the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 and Rule Book of the
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company remains committed to the principle of good
corporate management practices with emphasis on transparency and disclosures. Your Company is
cognizant to monitor its performance to enhance the accuracy, comprehensiveness and
transparency of financial and non-financial information. In compliance of corporate law, the
various statements, as required by the code, are given below:

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The financial statements, prepared by the Company, fairly represent its state of affairs, the results
of operations, cash flows, and changes in equity;

BOOKS OF ACCOUNTS:

The Company has maintained proper books of accounts;

ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment;
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DEBT REPAYMENT

The Company has adopted an effective cash flow strategy whereby cash flows are being
monitored vigilantly. Efficient financial management has enabled the Company to meet its
financial commitments.

COMPLIANCE WITH INTERNATIONAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS (IAS):

International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation
of financial statements;

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM:

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored;

ON GOING CONCERN:

The Company's financial position is sound enough to ensure its continuity as an on going concern;

NO OUTSTANDING STATUTORY DUES:

There are no outstanding statutory dues on account of taxes, levies and charges except of
normal and routine nature;

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

Key operating and financial data of the last six years is given in Annex 1.
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BOARD MEETINGS:

During the year ended June 30, 2025 five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held.
Attendance of each Director is given below:

Director’s Name Meeting Attended

Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 5
Mian Muhammad Jamil

Mr. Mohammad Alamgir Jamil Khan
Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh

Mian Taugir Ahmed Sheikh

Mrs. Bushra Taugir

Mrs. Misbah Idrees Sheikh

Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi

Mr. Nazir Ahmad Khan

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Khan Durrani

Mr. Imran Hussain

o1 o1 o1~ 01 01 O o1 O Ol

The Audit Committee held four (4) meetings during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

Members Name Attendance

Mr. Nazir Ahmad Khan 4
Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi 4
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil 4

The HR & R Committee held one (1) meeting during the year. Attendance by each member was as
follows:

Members Name Attendance
Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi 1
Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Khan Durrani 1
Mrs. Misbah Idrees Sheikh 1
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Board consisted of 8 male and 3 female directors
with following composition:

Independent Directors
Non-Executive Directors
Executive Directors

Female Non-Executive Directors
Total number of Directors

P wWweEk M~

AUDITORS

Your Company's Auditors M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, Multan retire and being
eligible offer themselves for re-appointment for the next year.

The Audit Committee of the Company has recommended and proposed the re-appointment of
M/s Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants, Multan as Auditors of the Company for the year 2025-
2026 with remuneration as per ICAP Standard, in the upcoming Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

A statement showing pattern of shareholdings of the Company and additional information as at
June 30, 2025 is annexed to this report.

SUSTAINABILITY — RELATED RISKS

The sustainability —related risks involve the consideration of environment, social and governance
(ESG) factors. By embracing operational practices, adopting renewable energy policies, and green
initiatives, the Company aims to contribute to a sustainable future. The management has set
specific and measurable ESG targets that align with the Company’s strategic objective to achieve
greater sustainable resilience and positive social impact. The Company has channeled significant
capital into cutting- edge, eco-friendly technologies that embody the principles of responsible
consumption and production. While such sustainable initiative might challenge short-term profits
or margins, the Company believes that in the long run, it will enhance business value through
customer acquisition and retention and a competitive edge. The Company performs a thorough
analysis of current and potential risks, highlighting specific areas of concern by following
recognized frameworks. Further, transparency is maintained through quarterly ESG reporting to
the Board, ensuring stakeholders are informed and engaged.
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DIVERSITY, EQUITY & INCLUSION (DE& 1)

With the diverse workforce and communities, the Company stands as an advocate for diversity,
equity and inclusion (DE& I). Promoting DE& | is key priority for the Company and is integral to
its sustainability and ethical business practices. A comprehensive DE& | strategy with clear and
measurable goals, targeting increased gender and ethnic diversity and inclusion at all levels, is in
process. The Company implements inclusive recruitment practices, such as using diverse job
boards, blind recruitment processes, and diverse interview panels. Multiple DE& 1 training
sessions are provided for all employees, covering topics like unconscious bias, cultural
competency, and inclusive leadership.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors acknowledge the best cooperation as usual enjoyed by your Company from all
relevant Financial Institutions, its Bankers, M/s Habib Bank Limited, M/s Bank AL Habib
Limited, M/s Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited, M/s United Bank Limited, M/s Askari Bank
Limited and M/s Samba Bank Limited and wish to record their appreciation for the same and hope

their support to the Company will continue in future as well.

Your Directors also acknowledged the sincere efforts of the entire team of ALLAWASAYA
TEXTILE AND FINISHING MILLS LIMITED for their role in the successful operations of
the Mills during the year. We also thank all our valued customers, stakeholders for their
commitment to the Company and look forward to sharing further successes with them in the

coming years.

The dedicated hard work of all employees of the Company, working in these challenging

circumstances, keeping the operations of the Company smooth is also acknowledged.

On behalf of the Board

Sd/- Sd/-
Mohammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh
Chief Executive Officer Executive Director

Multan, October 03, 2025
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SIX YEARS KEY OPERATING AND FINANCIAL DATA

Year Ended June 30,
BALANCE SHEET

Authorized Capital

Issued, Subseribed & Paid up Capieal

Surplos on Revahmtion of Property, Plant & Equipment

Tax holiday reserve
Ceneral reserve
Un-appropriated Profies
Total Equity

Loan from Directors

Long Tam Loans
Lease Liabilities
Deferved Liabilities
Deferred grant
Current Liabilities

Total Liahilities

Total Equity & Liabilities

Fixed Assets

Long Team Depasits
Carrent Assets
Assets held for sale

Total Assets

PROFIT OR LOSS ACCOUNT
Revenuefram contracts - net
Gross Profit

(Loss) / Profit before Taxation

(Loss) / Profit after Taxation

DISTRIBUTION

Cash Dividend %

RATIOS

Break up valoe Par share (Rs.)
Earning / {Loss) per Share (Rs)
Curent Ratio

Debt! equity ratio

CAPACITY & PRODUCTION
No, of spindles installed

No. of spindles werked

Capacity of Yarn at 20's Count {Kgs)

Artul Production of Yarn at 20's Count (K gs)

2028 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,300 8,000,000 §,000,000

1,007,830 850 1,126,303,251 1,157451,172 1,177,127,8846 815,788 842 820,601,303
2,668,740 2,668,746 2 668,746 2,668,746 2,668,740 2 668,746
20,000,000 80,000 000 80,000,000 80,000 000 80,000,000 80,000,000
246,719,898 100,738, 311,385,056 471,010 408 342,683,609 183,420,824
1,285,218, 500 1,317, 110.802 1,550,208 574 1,728 307,040 1.249.111,197 1.102,691.073
192,500,000 157500000 105,000,000 : - -
1,477,718, 500 1,472210,802 1,664,508 574 1,738 807,040 1,249.111,197 1,103,691,073
326,513,765 129,196,856 214,74087 195,426,731 151,193,035 178,875,000
2,341 480 £ 886, M8 858457 13436 529
82,830,337 168,715,493 125,203,648 2121711717 170,029 852 191,772,520
76,715,330 83 015,074 47,372,597
1.624 484 201 1,716,442 310 1007889 673 1,36%332 196 248 0= 824 882241228
2.112 887,420 2105256 447 2,304,001 365 1784367173 $70.019 676 1252 880,048
3,590,005 920 3,380 467,249 3,968,596 95 3,523,174,213 2,119,130,873 2,356,580,121
1,46 375,08 2,245,%47,700 2,298,225,320 2,136,308, 160 1,302,975,010 1,423,470920
5337407 5237407 5337497 5337407 2370997 2,370,997
1,402,244,954 1331581986 1,665,034,116 1381531556 723,775,266 930,720,204
230,048 451
3500605 020 3 580 .467,249 3,068 206,930 3203174213 2.119.130.873 2.356.580.121
4,353,513,640 6,118,253 956 3,775805.614 4827204348 3546836 485 2,657,387974
153,380,004 273057,002 144,571,495 455,492,118 363,196,084 176,766,811
(42,054 868) (133 .333,726) (200,669,386 218,505 449 216,568 597 22,056,403
{69,831,276) {249,767.345) (164,766,633) 143885427 145,420,124 14,826,182
7250 352,50
1606,52 1647.14 1949938 217351 1561.392 13051
(87.29) (31221) {205.96) 17086 18178 1853
11 B:1 871 1.01:1 132:1 105:1
273 16:84 15:85 14:86 1783 16:84
45328 46,488 406,488 38,231 38,232 38,232
37848 46,488 456,488 38,232 38232 38232
12,645,169 16,251,192 11470922 16,220207 16,204,862 13,971,685
12,607,115 16,183 418 11,566,985 16,127 405 16,000,494 13,816,008

23
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019
NAME OF COMPANY ALLAWASAYA TEXTILE AND FINISHING MILLS LIMITED
YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2025

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are 11 as per the following:

a. Male: 8

b. Female: 3
2. The composition of Board is as follows:

i Independent Directors

1. Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi Independent Director
2. Mr. Nazir Ahmad Khan Independent Director
3. Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Khan Durrani Independent Director
4, Mr. Imran Hussain Independent Director
ii. Non-executive Directors
1. MianTaugir Ahmed Sheikh Non-Executive Director
iii. Executive Directors
1. Mian Muhammad Jamil Executive Director
2. Mr. Mohammad AlamgirJamil Khan Executive Director (CEO)
3. Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh Executive Director
iv. Female Directors
1. Mrs. NusratJamil Non-Executive Director
(Chairperson)
2. Mrs. Bushra Taugir Non-Executive Director
3. Mrs. Misbah Idrees Sheikh Non-Executive Director
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.
4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant

policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of significant
policies along with the dates of approval or updating has been maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been
taken by Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a director

elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations.
9. Five out of eleven Directors have already attended Directors’ Training Program (DTP), two

Independent Directors namely Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi and Mr. Nazir Ahmad Khan have
gotten exemption from SECP in year 2019, four Directors are exempted from the requirement of
DTP as per regulation No. 19(2) of the CCG Regulations, 2019. All the Directors are fully
conversant with their duties and responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

10. There was no change with respect to appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of
Internal Audit during the year.

11. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.
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12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee: 1. Mr. Nazir Ahmad Khan- Independent Director- Chairman
2. Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi- Independent Director- Member
3. Mrs. Nusrat Jamil- Non-Executive Director- Member

b) HR and Remuneration Committee: 1. Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi- Independent Director- Chairman

2. Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Khan Durrani- Independent Director- Member
3. Mrs. Misbah Idrees Sheikh- Non-Executive Director- Member

c) Nomination Committee (not mandatory)
d) Risk Management Committee (not mandatory)

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to
the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee 4 quarterly meetings
b) HR and Remuneration Committee 1 annually meeting
¢) Nomination Committee

d) Risk Management Committee

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function headed by the Head of Internal Audit. The
staff is suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company and is involved in the internal audit function on a full time basis.

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners
arein compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of
the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent
children) of the chief executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company
secretary or director of the company.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other
services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and 36 of the Regulations have
been complied with.
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19. Explanations for non-compliances with requirements, other than regulations 3,6,7,8,27,32,33 and
36 are given below:
Reg. Non-Mandatory regulations Explanation
no.
Nomination Committee Currently, the Board has not constituted a
separate Nomination Committee and the functions
29(1) | Nomination Committee are being performed 'by the Human Resource &
) . Remuneration Committee.
The Board may constitute a separate committee,
designated as the nomination committee, of such
number and class of directors as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances
Risk Management Committee Currently, the Board has not constituted a
risk management committee and the
30(1) | The Board may constitute the risk management | Company’s Internal Auditor, performs the
committee, of such number and class of directors, | requisite functions and apprises the board
as it may deem appropriate in its circumstances, to | accordingly
carry out a review of effectiveness of risk
management procedures and present a report to
the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Sd/-

Mohammad Alamgir Jamil Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Multan, October 03, 2025

Sd/-
Mrs. Nusrat Jamil

Chairperson
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLAWASAYA TEXTILE AND FINISHING MILLS LIMITED

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Allawasaya Textile
and Finishing Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2025 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company.
Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company’s
compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to highlight any non-
compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the
Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the
Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach.
We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all
risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s
corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the
Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions.
We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related
party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of
Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the
requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2025.

YOUSUF ADIL
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Multan
Date: October 06, 2025
UDIN Number: CR2025101805wumOFlov
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF ALLAWASAYA TEXTILE & FINISHING MILLS LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Allawasaya Textile & Finishing
Mills Limited (the Company) which comprise the statement of financial position as at
June 30, 2025, and the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income,
the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements including a summary of material accounting policies
information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss , the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the loss and other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following is the key audit matter:

Key audit matter

| How the matter was addressed in our audit

1. Revenue Recognition

The Company’s revenue from contracts comprise of
revenue from the sale of yarn this has been disclosed in
note 27 to the financial statements.

Revenue from the sale is recognized, when control
related to the sale of goods is transferred and the
performance obligation is satisfied i.e. on dispatch of
goods (note 4.4.17).

We identified revenue recognition as key audit matter
as it is one of the key performance indicators of the
Company and because of the potential risk that revenue
transactions may not have been recognized based on
transfer of control to the customers in line with the
accounting policy adopted and may not have been
recognized in the appropriate period.

Our audit procedures to address the Key Audit Matter
included the following:

e Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design and  implementation and  operating
effectiveness of controls around recognition of
revenue;

o Assessing the appropriateness of the Company’s
accounting policies for revenue recognition and
compliance of those policies with applicable
accounting standards;

e Checked on sample basis whether the recorded sales
transactions are based on transfer of goods to the
customer, satisfying the performance obligation and
were recorded in the appropriate accounting period.

e Testing timeliness of revenue recognition by
comparing individual sales transactions before and
after year end to underlying documents; and

e Reviewing the adequacy of disclosure as required
under applicable financial reporting framework.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information.

The other information comprises the information

included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,

we are required to report that fact.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and

fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX
of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon
have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (X1X of 2017) and are in agreement with
the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of
the Company’s business; and

d) no zakat was deducted at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVI11 of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Sufyan.

YOUSUF ADIL
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Place: Multan
Date: October 06, 2025
UDIN Number: AR202510180Lw9Y fnPdy
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees Rupees
ASSETS (Restated) (Restated)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,946,375,018 2,243,647,766 2,298,225,326
Long term deposits 5,337,497 5,337,497 5,337,497
1,951,712,515 2,248,885,263 2,303,562,823
Current assets
Stores and spares 6 75,492,363 58,578,263 56,672,966
Stock in trade 7 452,190,626 545,123,823 934,774,914
Trade debts 8 337,503,710 282,144,194 406,488,578
Loan, advances and other receivables 9 188,086,322 24,012,983 40,784179
Advance income tax 76,622,655 75,638,815 79,212,240
Trade deposits and prepayments 10 2,422,327 3,742,015 2,938,965
Tax refunds due from government 11 247,243,095 323,555,029 127,061,759
Other financial assets 12 15,000,000 15,000,000 14,918,610
Cash and bank balances 13 7,683,856 3,786,864 2,181,905
1,402,244,954 1,331,581,986 1,665,034,116
Assets held for sale 14 236,648,451 - -
1,638,893,405 1,331,581,986 1,665,034,116
Total assets 3,590,605,920 3,580,467,249 3,968,596,939
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Share capital 15 8,000,000 8,000,000 8,000,000
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 16 1,007,839,856 1,126,3083,251 1,157,451,172
Tax holiday reserve 2,668,746 2,668,746 2,668,746
General reserve 20,000,000 80,000,000 80,000,000
Unappropriated profits 246,709,898 100,738,805 311,385,656
1,285,218,500 1,317,710,802 1,559,505,574
Loan from directors 17 192,500,000 157,500,000 105,000,000
1,477,718,500 1,475,210,802 1,664,505,574
Non-current liabilities
Long term loan 18 326,515,763 129,196,856 214,740,876
Lease liabilities 19 2,341,489 5,886,705 8,584,574
Deferred taxation 20 82,830,337 168,715,493 125,503,645
Deferred liabilities 21 76,715,330 85,015,074 47,372,597
488,402,919 388,814,128 396,201,692
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 1,059,827,417 726,917,871 630,049,870
Accrued markup 23 21,682,596 48,779,664 69,799,699
Short term borrowings 24 341,081,804 731,873,325 1,108,873,180
Current portion of long term loan 18 131,756,045 116,696,198 45,758,724
Current portion of lease liabilities 19 3,418,263 2,693,918 2,043,917
Current portion of deferred grant 21 8,132,742 8,836,456 -
Unclaimed dividend 1,029,630 1,029,630 1,029,630
Provision for taxation 25 57,556,004 79,615,257 50,334,653
1,624,484,501 1,716,442,319 1,907,889,673
Contingencies and commitments 26
Total equity and liablities 3,590,605,920 3,580,467,249 3,968,596,939
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-

Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan

Chief Executive Officer

Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh

Director

Sohail Nadeem

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Revenue from contracts with customers - net
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit

Other income

Distribution and marketing expenses
Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance cost

Loss before revenue taxes and income tax
Revenue taxes

Loss before income tax
Income tax- net

Loss for the year

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Note

27
28

29
30
31
32
33

34

35

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)

4,353,513,640 6,118,253,956
(4,199,933,636)  (5,845216,354)
153,580,004 273,037,602
107,147,730 12,969,720
(30,510,828) (40,080,030)
(117,480,851) (94,395,163)
(4,448,100) (12,616,555)
(150,342,823 (272,249,300)
(195,634,872) (406,371,328)
(42,054,868) (133,333,726)
(54,418,921) (76,478,174)
(96,473,789) (209,811,900)
26,642,513 (39,955,445)
(69,831,276) (249,767 345)

36 (87.29) (312.21)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/-
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan
Chief Executive Officer

Sd/-

Mian ldrees Ahmed Sheikh

Director

Sd/-

Sohail Nadeem
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Restated
Loss for the year (69,831,276) (249,767,345)
Other comprehensive income for the year -
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation - gratuity (461,078) 11,228,976
Related tax thereon 133,713 (3,256,403)
(327,365) 7,972,673

Deficit on revaluation of property plant and equipment (21,442,591)
Deferred tax impact on revaluation 59,108,930

37,666,339
Total comprehensive loss for the year (32,492,302) (241,794,772)

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Sd/- Sd/-
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh
Chief Executive Officer Director

Sd/-

Sohail Nadeem
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
Reserves
Capital Revenue
; Surplus on Loan from
e Copiad revaluation of Tax hollday Canail recarve Unappropriated directors e
property, plant feserve profits
and equipment
Rupees
Balance at June 30, 2023 - as reported earlier 8,000,000 1,157451,172 2,668,746 80,000,000 320,120,429 105,000,000 1,673,240,408
Effect of change in accounting policy - - - - {8,734,833) (8,734834)
Balance at June 30, 2023 - restated 8,000,000 1,157451172 2668746 80,000,000 311385656 105,000,000 1,664,505.574
Loss for the year - - - - (249,767 345) - (249,767,345)
Qther comprehensive income for the year - - 7072573 7872573
Total compreherive loss for the year (241,794772) (241,794772)
Transaction with owners
Loan from directors - - 52,500,000 52,500,000
Transfes from surplus on revaluation of propery, plant and equipment
onaccount of incremental depreciation (net of deferred tax) {note-16) {17998827) 17998827
Transfer of revaluation surplus due to disposal of revalued assets -
net of deferred tax (ncte-16) - {13,1490%4) - - 13,149094 - -
Balance at June 30, 2024 8,000000 1,126303251 2,608 746 80,000,000 100,728,805 157,500000 1473210802
Loss for the year . - - (69,831,276) (69,831,276)
Other comprehensive ncome for the year - 37,666,339 - (327,365) 37,333,974
Total comprehensive loss for the year - 37,666,339 - {70,158,641) - {32,492,302)
Transfer from surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
onaccount of incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax {note-16) - {13,199,702) 13,199,702
Transfer of revaluation surplus due to disposal of revalued assets -
net of deferred tax (ncte-16) - (142,930,032) - - 142,930,032 -
Transfer form general reserve to unapproprate profits {60,000,000) 60,000,000
Transaction with owners
Loan from directors . - - . - 35,000,000 35,000,000
Balance at June 30, 2025 8,000,000 1,007 839856 2,668,746 20,000,000 246,709,898 192,500,000 1,477,718,500
The annexed notes from 1to 47 form an integral part of these financial statemente.
Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer

35
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

Note

A. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 51.1
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Allowance for expected credit losses
Minimum taxes
Gain on other financial assets
Provision for staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Finance cost
Operating cash flows before movement in working capital

Decrease / (Increase) in current assets

Stores and spares
Stock in trade
Trade debts
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments
Sales tax refundable
(Decrease) / increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables

Net cash generated from / (used in) operations

Income taxes paid

Staff retirement benefits - gratuity paid
Finance cost paid

Net cash used in from operating activities

B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Addition to property, plant and equipment 5
Addition to capital work in progress

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Payment for purchase of short term investments

Security deposit paid

Net cash used in investing activities

C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Long term finances obtained

Loan from directors

Lease liability paid

Repayment of long term finances 44
Dividend paid

Short term borrowings - net

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Restated
(96,473,789) (209,811,900)
78,193,692 80,470,972
(92,160,444) %
4,448,100 12,616,555
(4,448,100) (12,257,349)
54,418,921 76,478,174
- (81,390)
38,381,690 37,517,768
150,342,823 272,249,300
132,702,893 257,182,130
(16,914,100) (1,905,297)
92,933,197 389,651,091
(55,359,516) 124,344,384
(7,048,339) 16,771,196
1,319,688 (803,050)
60,060,227 (180,046,786)
332,909,546 96,868,001
407,900,703 444,879,539
540,603,596 702,061,669
(61,210,311) (60,070,628)
(39,009,770) (22,657,682)
(177,439,891) (293,269,335)
262,943,624 326,064,024
(183,153,697) (45,502,618)
(5,036,401) -
84,213,560 19,350,000
(103,976,538) (26,152,618)
340,871,456 94,000,000
35,000,000 52,500,000
(2,820,871) (2,047,868)
(137,329,158) (65,758,724)
(295,382,786) (295,698,239)
(59,661,359) (217,004,831)
99,305,727 82,906,575
(314,297,675) (397,204,250)
(214,991,948) (314,297,675)
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Restated
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances 13 7,683,856 3,786,864
Running finance (overdraft) 24 (222,675,804) (318,084,539)
Net cash and cash equivalents at the end of year (214,991,948) (314,297 ,675)
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Sd/- sd/- Sd/-
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2025

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Allawasaya Textile & Finishing Mills Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on March 31, 1958 as
a private limited company. It was converted into a public limited company in 1965 under the Companies, Act
1913 (now Companies Act, 2017). Its shares are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) in Pakistan. It is
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of yarn. The Registered office and mill of the Company is
situated at Allawasaya Square, Mumtazabad Industrial Area, Vehari Road, Multan in the province of Punjab
having area of 304 kanal 16 marlas.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS Standards, the
provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Adoption of new and revised accounfing standards

The following amendments to existing standards have been published that are applicable to the Company's
financial statements covering annual periods, beginning on or after the following dates:

New amendments that are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025

The following amendments are effective for the year ended June 30, 2025. These amendments are either not
relevant to the Company's operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements other than certain additional disclosures.

Amendments to IFRS 16 ' Leases' -Clarification on how seller-lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback
transactions

Amendments to I1AS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' - Classification of liabilities as current or non-
current along with Non-current liabilities with Convenants

Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and 'IFRS 7 'Financial instruments disclosures' - Supplier
Finance Arrangements

Standard and amendments to IFRS that are not yet effective
The following standard and amendments are effective for accounting perieds, beginning on or after the date
mentioned against each of them. These amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are
not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additicnal
disclosures.
Effective from accounting period
beginning on or after:

Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange
Rates' - Clarification on how entity accounts when there is long term January 01, 2025
lack of Exchangeability

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts (including the June 2020 and December

2021 Amendments 1o IFRS 17) MRy Sty eNe

Amendments IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial January 01, 2026
instruments disclosures' - Classification and measurement of financial
instruments

Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting Standards (related to IFRS 1,
IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 10 and IAS 7)

Amendments IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' and IFRS 7 'Financial
instruments disclosures' - Contracts Referencing Nature-dependent January 01, 2026
Electricity

January 01, 2026
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Other than the aforesaid amendments, IASB has also issued the following standards which have not been
adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan:

- IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
- IFRS 18- Presentation and Disclosures in Financial Statements
- IFRS 19 - Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention modified by:

- revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment; and
- certain financial instruments at fair value.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation
currency.

Critical judgments and accounting estimates in applying the accounting policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts assets, liabilities, income and expenses.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that
are believed to be reasonable under circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgment
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other resources. Actual resulis
may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on the ongoing basis.
Revisicns to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future period if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

Significant areas requiring the use of management estimates in these financial statements relate to the
following:

- useful life of depreciable assets.

- allowance for expected credit loss.

- provision for tax and deferred tax.

- revaluation of property plant and equipment.

However, assumptions and judgments made by management in the application of accounting policies that have
significant effect on the financial statements are not expected to result in material adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the next year.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out as below.
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment except freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric
installation and power house and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any.

Freehold land, building on freeheld land, plant and machinery, electric installation and power house are stated at
revalued amount being the fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity so that the fair value and carrying
value do not differ materially at the statement of finacial position date. Increases in the carrying amounts
arising on revaluaticn of land, buildings and plant and machinery are recognised, net of deffered tax, in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders' equity.

To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, the
increase is first recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Decrease that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset. All other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the
difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement
of profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment to unappropriated profit.
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Depreciation is charged to income applying reducing balance method to write-off the cost over the estimated
remaining useful life of assets. The useful life and depreciation method are reviewed pericdically to ensure that
the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from
items of property, plant and equipment. Rates of depreciation are stated in note 6.1. In respect of additions and
disposals during the year, depreciation is charged from the month of acquisition and up to the month preceding
the disposal respectively.

Gains / losses on disposal of operating assets, if any, are recognized in statement of profit or loss, as and when
assets are derecognized.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to statement of profit or loss as and when incurred. Major
renewals and improvements are capitalized and assets replaced, if any, other than those kept as stand-by, are
retired.

4.4.2 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased assets
are available for use by the company.

The lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the minimum lease payments at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, or if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate. At initial recognition, liabilities were discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Lease payment includes fixed payments with annual increments. The lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured based on the initial amount of the lease liabilities adjusted for any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an
estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, less any lease incentive received. The right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight line
method over the lease term as this method most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of future
economic benefits. The carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced by impairment losses, if any. At
transition, the Company recognised right of use assets equal to the present value of lease payments.
4.4.3 Capital work-in-progress
Capital work-in-progress (CWIP) is stated at cost less any recognhized impairment loss. All expenditures

connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under CWIP.
These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use.

4.4.4 Stores and spares

These are valued at lower of cost and net realized value. The cost is determined on moving average cost less
allowance for obsolete and slow moving items. Items in transit are valued at invoice values plus other charges
incurred thereon upto the reporting date.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4.4.5 Stock in trade
These are determined at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined as;

Particulars
Raw material
- At mills Weighted average cost.
- In transit Cost accumulated up to statement of financial
position date.
Work in process Average manufacturing cost.
Finished goods Average manufacturing cost.
Waste Net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.




(B

»
»
o

£

4.7

4.4.8

4.4.9

Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value, which is usually the original invoiced
amount and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method less allowance for
expected credit loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, balances with
banks, highly liquid short-term investments that are convertible to known amount of cash and are subject to
insignificant risk of change in value, and shortterm running finance. Running finances under mark-up
arrangements are shown with short term borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at amortised cost which is the fair value of the consideration
to be paid in future for the goods and services received, whether or not hilled to the Company.

Taxation / Revenue Taxes
Current

Charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account
tax credits and tax rebates available, if any, as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

Revenue Taxes
Revenue taxes includes amount representing excess of :

a)minimum tax paid under section 113 over income tax determined on income streams taxable at general rate
of taxation and;

b)minimum tax withheld / collected / paid or computed over tax liability computed on (related income tax
streamstaxable at general rate of tax), is not adjustable against tax liability of subsequent tax years.

Amount over income tax determined on income streams taxable at general rate of taxation shall be treated as
revenue taxes.

The company determines, based on expected future taxable profits, that excess paid under section 113 by the
entity over and above its tax liability (cn income stream(s) taxable at general rate of taxation) is expected to be
realized in subsequent tax years, then, such excess shall be recorded as deferred tax asset adjustable against
tax liability for subsequent tax years. This shall be recognized as ‘deferred tax asset’ for the reason that it
represents unused tax credit as it can be adjusted only against tax liability (of subsequent tax years) arising on
taxable income subject to general rate of taxation. Such an asset shall be subject to requirements contained in
IAS 12 ‘Income Tax’

A levy is an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits that is imposed by governments on entities in
accordance with legislation (i.e. laws and/or regulations), other than:

(a) those outflows of resources that are within the scope of other standards.
(b) fines or other penalties that are imposed for breaches of the legislation.

In these financial statements, levy includes minimum taxes differential, if any, final taxes and super taxes which
are calculated on a basis other than taxable profits. The corresponding advance tax paid, except for minimum
taxes under section 113, which are treated as levy are recognised as prepaid assets.

Deferred

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method for all temporary differences at the reporting date between
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes after considering,
the average enacted tax rate.

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences and carry forward of unused tax
losses, if any, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which such temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date.
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Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

Impairment
Non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each statement of finacial position date whether there is any indication that assets
may be impaired. If such indication exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether
they are recorded in excess of their recoverable amount. Where carrying values exceed the respective
recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount and the resulting impairment loss is
recognized in statement of profit or loss. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

Where impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets is increased to the revised
recoverable amount but limited to the extent of carrying amount that would have heen determined had no
impairment loss been recognized in prior periods. Reversal of impairment loss is recognized as income.
Financial assets

The Company recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets that are
measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL, as well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected
credit losses is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial assets.

The Company always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables. For all other financial instruments, the
Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-
month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. IFRS 9 does not define what constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative,
quantitative, reasonable and supportable forward looking information. The historical loss rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-locking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of
default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-locking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying
amount at the reporting date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down
as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on histerical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing
needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-locking information.

Definition of default:

The Company considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria are
generally not recoverable:

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

- information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay
its creditors, including the Company, in full (without taking into account any collateral held by the Company).

Write-off policy
The Company writes off financial assets when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Financial assets written off may still be subject

to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made against financial assets written-off are recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial Instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Company’s statement of financial position when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or at fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

a}  Debtinstruments measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance.
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for
any loss allowance.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.

b} Debt instruments measured af fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOC!)

Debt instruments that meet specified conditions and are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

c)  Equity instruments designated as at FYTOC!

On initial recognition, the Company may make an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-instrument basis) to
designate investments in equity instruments as at FVTOCIL.

d) Financial assefs measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
asset to another entity. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities that are not

- contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination,

- held-for-trading, or

- designated as at FVTPL,

are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in Statement of profit or loss.

Off setting of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial asset and a financial liability is off set and the net amount reported in the statement of finacial
position when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Foreign currency transiation

All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the
rates of exchange prevailing on the date of transactions. All non-monetary items are translated into Pak Rupees
at exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.

Gains and losses on retranslation and settlement are included in Statement of profit or loss for the period.
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods is transferred to the customer
and the performance cbligaticn is satisfied under the contract at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Company expects 1o be entitled in exchange for those goods.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. However, provisions are reviewed at each
statement of finacial position date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its employees. The cost of providing benefit is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately as they arise in other comprehensive income. Past service cost is recognized
immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. Otherwise it is amortized on a straight line basis
over the average period until the amended benefits become vested.

Details of the scheme are given in the note 21.1 to these financial statements.
Changes in accounting policies

During the year, management decided to change the valuation method of staff retirement benefits from current
cost method to projected unit credit method, with acturial valuation for depicting more appropriate results.
Considering this change as a change in accounting policy as per IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors,” and prior period figures have been restated accordingly.

In addition to the aforementioned change, the Company has also made certain reclassifications for better
presentation, including the reclassification of Rs. 43 million from trade and other payables to staff retirement
benefits. The effects of the change are as follows:
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Impact on statement of financial position

Trade and other payables
Staff retirement benefits
Deferred taxation
Unappropriated profits

Impact on statement of financial position

Trade and other payables
Staff retirement benefits
Deferred taxation
Unappropriated profits

Impact on statement profit or loss

Cost of goods sold

Loss before revenue taxes and income tax
Loss before income tax

Income tax- net

Loss for the year

Loss per share - basic and diluted

Impact on statement of comprehensive income

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
-Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation
-Related tax thereon

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Impact on statement of change in equity

As at June 30, 2023 - as reported
Impact of change in policy
As at June 30, 2023 - Restated

As at June 30, 2024 - as reported

Impact of rectification of policy - 2023 (as stated above)
Impact of rectification of policy - 2024 (as stated above)

As at June 30, 2024 - Restated

2023
Previously Impact of change Restated Amount
reported in policy
amount
Rupees
665,119,885 (35,070,015) 630,049,870
35,070,015 12,302,582 47,372,597
129,071,394 (3,567,749) 125,503,645
320,120,489 (8,734,833) 311,385,656
2024
Previously Impact of change Restated Amount
reported in policy
amount
- RUPEES =====r=memmmmamncnm e
770,156,906 (43,239,035) 726,917,871
43,239,035 7,764,672 51,003,707
170,967,248 (2,251,755) 168,715,493
106,251,722 (5,512,917) 100,738,805
2024
Previously Impact of change Restated Amount
reported in policy
amount
Rupees
(5,838,525,289) (6,691,065) (5845,216,354)
(126,642,661) (6,691,065) (133,333,726)
(203,120,835) (6,691,065) (209,811,900)
(41,895,853) 1,940,408 (39,955,445)
(245,016,688) (4,750,657) (249,767,345)
(306.27) (5.94) (312.21)
2024
Previously Impact of change Restated Amount
reported in policy
amount
Rupees
(245,016,688) (4,750,657) (249,767,345)
- 11,228,976 11,228,876
- (3,256,403) (3,256,403)
- 7,972,573 7,972,573
(245,016,688) 3,221,916 (241,794,772)
Unappropriated
profits
Rupees
320,120,489
(8,734,833)
311,385,656
106,251,722
(8,734,833)
3,221,916
100,738,805
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5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

bl

2025 204
Note Rupees Rupees
Operating assels 51 1,934,247,193  2,234,683,486
Right of use asset 53 7,091,424 8,864,280
Capital work in progress 54 5,036,401 -
1,946,375018 2,243 547,766
Operating assets
Cost / Revaluation Accumulated Depreciation
Transfer to Waiten down
Particulars Additions/ Revaluation Atstartofthe | Fortheyear/ | Revaluation value Rate
At start of year (Disposals) Adjustment Asset::;:ld for | Atendof year year (on dispos) Adjustment Atend of year ateadofyesr
Rupees %
Land- freehold 805943000  (136950000) 182,381,307  (236.648451) 614725856 . . . 614,725,856
Building on free-hold fand 375,298,464 . (76.562,814) . 298,735,650 33,591,264 17,085,360 (50,676,624) 298735650 S
Plant and machinery 1,137,791,538 3683700  (410,824,638) - 716,750,000  152,321.842 50083993  (200,632427) 716750000 5
(13,900,000 (1,773,408)
Power house
- Building on freehold land 8,353,620 - 3,616,380 . 11,970,000 2,811,658 277,098 (3,088,756) 11970000 5
- Generators 97,332,424 (22,332,424) - 75,000,000 30,186,849 3357219 (33,544,128) - 75000000 5
- Electric installation 11,825040 - . . 11,825,040 8,602.840 483330 . 9,086,170 2738870 15
- Solar power planl - 175,850,167 13,603,433 - 189,453,600 > 732,709 (732,709) - 189,453,600 5
117,511,084 175,850,167 ° (5112,611) - 286,248,640 41,601,347 4850416 (37,365,593) 9,086,170 279,162,470
Tube well 1,270,006 - - . 1,270,006 736,768 51,324 808,092 461,914 10
Electric installation 31378378 3,620,430 - . 34,998,808 15,253,848 2,A90,212 17,944,060 17054748 15
Workshop equipments 160,909 . " 160,909 159,420 149 159,569 13400 10
Tools and equipments 151,401 5 e = 151,401 149,003 240 149,243 2158 10
Laboratory equipments 3,832,266 - - - 3,832,266 3,469,342 136,292 3,505,634 326,632 10
Weighing scales 880,408 - - - 880,408 729,669 15074 144,743 135665 10
Arms and ammunition 295,907 - - - 295,907 219,925 7598 221,523 68384 10
Office equipments 3512021 - . . 3812021 2,902,926 91,364 2,994,290 517731 15
Furniture and fixture 1,734,197 - - . 1,734,197 1,195416 53878 1,249,294 484903 10
Vehicle and automobile 25,087,408 - . 25087408 17812730 1,454,936 19,267,666 5819742 20
TOTAL 2,504,846,987 183,153,697  (310,118,756) {236,648,451)  1,990,383,477 270,163,500 76,420,835  (288,674,644) $6,136,284  1,934,247,193

(150,850,000}

(1,773408)
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For Comparative year
Cast / Revaluation Accumulated Depreciation
N Transterto ] L st
Particulars At start of year aA)ddmons; :;vabaﬂm: Asser:::d for | Afend of year | Atstart of year Zm/ :;;;:::;’ At end of year a e:t';m .
Rupees %
Land- fresho'd £05,943,000 . 805,943,000 . - . 805,943,000
Bui'ding on free-hold land 375,298,464 . 375,298 454 15,606,675 17,984 589 33591264 341707200 S
Piant and machinery 1,113,644,715 45433218 = 1,137,791,538 102,969,793 50,929,239 152,321,842 98546969 S
(21,285,396) {1577,190)
Power house
- Building on freehold and 8,353,620 - 8,353,620 2,519,976 291,682 2,811,658 5541962 §
- Generators 97332428 - 97332424 26,652,871 3533978 30,185,849 6714557 S
- Electric instaliation 11,825,040 - 11,825,040 8034216 563,624 8,602,840 3222200 15
117,511,084 - 117,511,084 37,207,063 4394,284 41,601,347 75,909,737
Tube we!| 1,270,006 - 1,270,006 699,742 £7,026 = 756,768 513238 10
Electric instaliation 31378378 31378378 12,408,343 2,845,505 15,263 348 16,124830 15
Workshop equipments 160,909 160,909 159,254 166 - 159,420 1489 10
Tools and equipments 151,401 - 151,401 148,737 266 143,003 2398 10
Laboratory equipments 3,832,266 % - 3,832,266 3429M7 40,328 3468342 362924 10
Weighing scales 811,008 69,400 . . 880,408 720,631 9,038 728,669 150739 10
Arms and ammunition 295,907 . 295,907 211,482 8443 219,925 75882 10
Office equipments 3512021 - 3,512,021 2795439 107,487 - 2902926 609095 15
Fumiture and fixture 1,734,197 1,734197 1,135,551 59,865 1,185,416 538781 10
Vehic'e and automebie 25087 408 25,087 408 15,594,061 1,818,669 17,812,730 7274678 20
TOTAL 2,480,630,764 45,502,618 2504846987 193,485,788 78,254,902 270,163,500 2,234,683,487
(21,286,396} {1,577,190}
Depreciation for the yeer has been zllocatad 2s under:
2025 2024
Note Rupees Rupees
Cost of goods seld 28 74,820,658 76260438
Administrative expenses 31 3,373,034 4210534
78,193,692 80,470,972

47
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5.2 Disposal of property, plant and equipment of book value exceeding Rs. 500,000

Accumulated Mode of
Particulars Cost Depreciation Carrying value | Sale proceeds | Gain/ (Loss) Disposal Relationship| Particulars of buyers
Rupees
For the year ended June 30, 2025
Land
Free hold land 136,950,000 - 1369850000 230025000 93,075,000 Negotiation Third party Asif Khan /Muhamamd Shehzad
Plant and machinery
2 ring frame FA - 507 3,500,000 446,158 3,053,842 2,400,000 (653,842) Negotiation Third party Mubashar Brothers
04 murata 7-ll machine medel 10,400,000 1,325,726 9.07_:1.274 8,813,560 (260,714) Negotiation Third party Mubashar Brothers
150,850,000 1,771,884 149,078,116 241238560 92,160,444
For the year ended June 30, 2024
Plant and machinery
5 cards,one scature, 4 simplex machines 8,003,045 540,394 7462651 8750000  1,287.349 Negotiation Third parly Tuseef Brothers
4 simplex FH2 toyoda 3,176,551 171,401 3,005,150 5300000 2294850 Negotiation Third party Malik Muhammad Afzal Kabaria
One auto cone machine 7-1l model 5,053,400 452,700 4600700 2,650,000  (1,950,700) Negotiation Third party Sadam Traders
One auto cone machine 7-Il model 5,053,400 412,694 4640706 2,650,000  (1,990,706) Negotiation Third party Muhammad Hafiz Kabana

21,286,396 1,577,189 19,709,207 19,350,000  (359,207)
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5.3 Right of use asset

Cost
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Closing balance

Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Closing balance

5.4 Capital work in progress
Building
Machinery

5.4.1 Movementin capital work in progress
Opening balance
Additions during the year
Capitalized during the year

Note

5.4.1
5.4.1

2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
17,234,120 17,234,120
17,234,120 17,234,120
(8,369,840) (6,153,770)
(1,772,856) (2,216,070)
(10,142,696) (8,369,840)
7,091,424 8,864,280
2,556,507 .
2,479,894 -
5,036,401 2
- 258,100,556
5,036,401 291,960,323
- (480,060,879)
5,036,401 -

5.5 The Company had revalued its freehold land, building on freehold land, plant and machinery, electric installation
and power house on June 30, 2025. The revaluation was carried out by Harvester Services (Private) Limited,
an independent valuer not connected to the company, on the basis of market value. The revaluation surplus had

been credited to 'surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment'.’

Forced sale value of the above items of property, plant and equipment is as follows:

Freehold land
Building on freehold land
Plant and machinery

Rupees

522,516,978
233,029,237
735,902,700

1,491,448,915

5.6. Had there been no revaluation the related figures of freehold land, building on freehold land and plant and
machinery as at the statement of financial position date would have been as follows;

Freehold land

Building on freehold land
Plant and machinery
Power house

Electric inslallation

6. STORES AND SPARES
Stores and spares
Packing material

7. STOCK IN TRADE
Raw materials
- Cotton
- Polyester
- Viscose
Carried forward

2025 2024

Rupees Rupees
4,834,284 5,335,834
155,267,544 163,439,520
688,942,523 725,816,321
225,057,817 52,766,967
15,252,117 14,003,787
1,089,354,285 961,362,429
68,389,115 51,747,877
7,103,248 6,830,386
75,492,363 58,578,263
310,737,236 287,006,597
4,216,428 12,134,349
- 18,121,290
314,953,664 317,262,236
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Brought forward
Raw material in- transit
Work in process
Finished goods

-Yarn

-Waste

TRADE DEBTS

Local - unsecured

Considered good

Provision of expected credit loss

Allowance for expected credit losses
Opening balance

Expected credit losses

Closing balance

Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 60 to 90 days terms.

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
314,953,664 317,262,236

- 35,129,327

31,260,849 33,313,644

102,283,928 149,561,101
3,692,185 9,857,515
105,976,113 159,418,616
452,190,626 545,123,823
351,933,436 292,125,820
(14,429,726) (9,981,626)
337,503,710 282,144,194
9,981,626 165,506
4,448,100 9,816,120
14,429,726 9,081,626

The Company provides for doubtful debts on the basis of past due balances. Balances considered bad and

irrecoverable are written of f when identified.

Trade debts consist of a large number of diversified customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the
financial condition of account receivable and, where appropriate, provision is made.

The fair value of trade debts approximate their carrying amounts.

Atyear end, trade debts of Rs. 337.5 million (2024: Rs. 282.14 million) were neither past due nor impaired.

As at year end, trade debts of Rs. 26.69 million (2024: 28.12 million) were past due but not considered impaired
for which the Company has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The aging of past due debts is as follows:

Over 6 months

LOAN, ADVANCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good

Advance to suppliers

Provision of expected credit loss

Advances to employees
Receivable against sale of land
Advance expenses on letter of credit

TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Margin deposit
Prepayments

TAX REFUNDS DUE FROM GOVERNMENT
Sales tax refundable
Income tax refundable

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
26,688,599 28,121,070
30,526,113 23,728,943
(2,441,229) (2,441,229)
28,084,884 21,287,714
2,976,438 2,708,366
157,025,000 2
- 16,903
188,086,322 24,012,983
1,605,311 1,605,311
817,016 2,136,704
2,422,327 3,742,015
241,522,104 301,582,331
5,720,991 21,972,698
247,243,095 323,555,029
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Meausred at amortized cost

2025
Rupees

15,000,000

2024
Rupees

15,000,000

This represents investment in AA+ rated, unsecured, subordinated, perpetual and non-cumulative term finance
certificate of Bank Al Habib Limited, having face value of Rs.15 million per certificate and carries profit at the

rate of 6 Months KIBOR + 1.65% per annum.

2025 2024
. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 6,730,588 2,484,915
Cash at banks in current accounts 953,268 1,301,949
7,683,856 3,786,864
ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
Land 236,648,451 =
The shareholders of the Company has approved to sale a piece of land measuring 58 kanals and 14 marlas in

Extra ordinary general meeting (EOGM) held on November 11, 2024, out of which the company has sold a piece
of land measuring 24 kanal 18 Marlas originally in March 2025 and renewed in June 2025. The remaining piece
of land has been classified as held for sale as per IFRS 5, as the management is committed to sell the land
within a pericd of one year. For this purpose, management is actively making efforts to locate the buyer
including ongoing negotiations with the some potential buyers.

SHARE CAPITAL
2025 2024 2025 2024
Number of shares Rupees Rupees
Authorised
1,000,000 1,000,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 10 each 10,000,000 10,000,000
Issued, subscribed and paid up
800,000 800,000 Ordinary share of Rs. 10 each 8,000,000 8,000,000
There were nc movements in issued, subscribed and paid up capital during the reporting year.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares which carry ne right to fixed income.
Shareholders are entitled to cast vote proportichate to the paid up value of shares carrying voting rights. All

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance

Reduction during the year

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of:
Incremental depreciation - net of deferred tax
Revaluation surplus due to disposal of revalued assets
Related deferred tax liability

Related deferred tax liability

Opening balance

Reduction during the year

Transferred to unappropriated profit on account of
- deferred tax on incremental depreciation
- deferred tax on disposal of revalued assets

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees

1,263,791,732 1,318,575,688
(21,442,591) 2
(13,199,702) (17,998,827)

(142,930,032) (13,149,094)
(12,496,520) (23,636,035)
(168,626,254) (54,783,956)

1,073,722,887

1,263,791,732

(137,488,481) (161,124,516)
59,108,930 -
9,849,113 18,265,278
2,647,407 5,370,757
(65,883,031) (137,488,481)

1,007,839,856

1,126,303,251
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2025 2024
LOAN FROM DIRECTORS Rupees Rupees
Mian Muhammad Jamil 21,500,000 21,500,000
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan 111,000,000 76,000,000
Mian Idrees Ahmad Sheikh 60,000,000 60,000,000
192,500,000 157,500,000

These loans are interest free and are obtained during the years 2024 and 2025 to meet operational financing
needs of the Company. These are repayable at the discretion of the Company and its repayment terms are not

defined.
2025 2024
LONG TERM LOAN Note Rupees Rupees
From conventional banks - secured
Term finance
Bank Al Hahib Limited 18.1 7,500,000 46,500,000
Askari Bank Limited 18.2 24,000,000 74,000,000
Samba Bank Limited 18.3. 116,884,330 -
148,384,330 120,500,000
Demand finance
Bank Al Habib Limited 18.4. 90,000,000 -
United Bank Limited 18.5. 103,354,167 -
193,354,167 -
Temporary economic refinance facility (TERF)
Bank Al Habib Limited 18.6. 150,544,678 168,240,877
Less: Current portion of long term financing 18.7. (131,756,045) (116,696,198)
Less: Current portion of deferred grant (8,132,742) (8,836,455)
Less: Deferred grant (25,878,625) (34,011,367)
326,515,763 129,196,857

This finance has been obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited for BMR. The loan is repayable in 20 equal quarterly
instalments commencing from Feb 14, 2020 .The Tenor of this loan is 6.5 Years with 1 year grace period. It
carries markup at rate of 6 month Avg Kibor + 1.5%. The finance is secured against first mortgage charge of
Rs.415 Million duly registered with SECP, over present and future fixed assets of the Company.

'This loan is obtained from Askari Bank Limited for balance sheet re-profiling. This loan has facility Limit upto
PKR 104 millicn and is repayable in 19 months with no grace period in 19 equal monthly installments. It carries
mark up at 1 Month KIBOR + 2%. The finance is secured against first paripassu / joint pari passu charge of PKR
152 million over fixed assets (Land, Building, Plant and Machinery) of the company, Subordination agreement of
Directors loan with Askari Bank Limited, and post dated cheques as per repayment schedule.

An amount of Rs. 129.87 million has been converted from cash finance and running finance into the term
finance by Samba Bank Limted on November 8, 2024 for working capital management. This loan is repayable in
60 equal monthly instaliments, commenced from December 08, 2024 with no grace period. It carries markup at
the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 1.5%.This finance is secured against full registered mortgage of Industrial Land
admeasuring 37 Kanal, 02 Marla situated at mills site and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.

An amount of Rs. 90 million has been converted from cash finance and running finance into term finance by
Bank Al Habib Limted on October 24, 2024 for permanent reduction in short term obligations.The loan is
repayable in 16 equal quarterly installments, commenced from May 01, 2025 with 6 month grace period. It
carries markup at the rate of 6MK + 0.5% .This finance is secured against personal guarantees of directors of
the Company.

An amount of Rs. 121 million has been converted from cash finance and running finance into demand finance
by United Bank Limted on October 10, 2024 for terminating out the short term outstanding exposure.This loan is
repayable in 24 equal monthly installments, commenced from December 01, 2024 with no grace period. It
carries markup at the rate of 1 month KIBOR + 1.5% pa.This finance is secured against first pari passu charge
over the fixed assets of the Company with 25% margin and personal guarantees of directors of the Company.




(B

-
e
[=))

18.7

20.

Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited

'This loan is obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited for retirement of import documents drawn under LC(s). This
loan has facility Limit upto PKR 175 million and is repayable in 10 years with 2 years grace period in 16 semi-
annual installments or on demand. It carries mark up at (SBP Rate + 1%) . The finance is secured against first
mortgage charge of Rs 727 million against personal guarantees of the directors.
This amount includes overdue balances of Rs. 17.8 million from Bank Al Habib Limited , Askari Bank Limited,
and Samba Bank Limited , which were due from payment before the year end but remain outstanding.
2025 2024
LEASE LIABILITIES Rupees Rupees
Present value of minimum lease payments 5,759,752 8,580,623
Current portion shown under current liabilities (3,418,263) (2,693,918)
2,341,489 5,886,705
This represents auto lease financing amounting to Rs 5.7 million (2024: Rs. 8.5 million) obtained from Bank AL
Hahib Limited for the purpose of leasing the vehicles. This loan has facility limit upto PKR 40 million and is
repayable in 5 years in 60 monthly installments. It carries mark up at 6 months KIBOR plus 1.5%. Minimum
lease payments have been discounted at an implicit interest rate ranging from 13.50% to 13.58% per annum
(2024: 23.08% to 24.46%) to arrive at their present values. The lessee has the option to purchase the assets
after expiry of the lease term.
The amount of future payments of the lease and the period in which these payments will become due are as
follows:
Minimum Future Present value
lease finance of lease
2025 payment charge liability
I —— (Rupees)---------------
Not later than one year 3,990,588 572,325 3,418,263
Later than one year and not later than
five years 2,460,433 118,944 2,341,489
6,451,021 691,269 5,759,752
Minimum Future Present value
lease finance of lease
2024 payment charge liability
- -(Rupees) —
Not later than one year 4,402,032 1,708,114 2,693,918
Later than one year and not later than
five years 7,121,620 1,234,915 5,886,705
11,523,652 2,943,029 8,580,623
DEFERRED TAXATION 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
Deferred tax liability 20.1 82,830,337 168,715,493
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Deferred tax recognised in

Opening Olithe . N
bifiince Profit or loss com.prehenswe Closing balance
income
Rupees
20.1 Movement for the year ended June 30, 2025
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable
temporary differences arising in respect of:
- Property, plant and equipment 131,646,714 26,292,351 - 157,939,065
- Surplus on revaluation of assets 137,488,481 (12,496,520) (59,108,930) 65,883,031
Deferred tax assets on deductable
temporary differences arising in respect of:
- staff gratuity (14,791,075) 182,144 (133,713) (14,742,644)
" provision of expected credit loss (3,554,631) (1,337,946) - (4,892,577)
- investment credit - - - -
- unabsorbed tax losses (82,073,996) (39,282,542) - (121,356,538)
168,715,493 (26,642,513) (59,242,643) 82,830,337
Deferred tax recognised in
Opening : G : ;
b T Profit or loss com_prehensrve Closing balance
income
Rupees
20.2 Movement for the year ended June 30, 2024 (restated)
Deferred tax liabilities on taxable
temporary differences arising in respect of:
- property, plant and equipment 122,400,546 9,246,168 - 131,646,714
- Surplus on revaluation of assets 150,210,871 (12,722,390) - 137,488,481
Deferred tax assets on deductable
temporary differences arising in respect of:
- staff gratuity (13,738,053) (4,309,425) 3,256,403 (14,791,075)
- Provision of expected credit loss - (3,554,631) - (3,554,631)
- investment credit (12,235,610) 12,235,610 -
- unabsorbed tax losses (121,134,109) 39,060,113 - (82,073,996)
125,503,645 39,955,445 3,256,403 168,715,493
2025 2024
21. DEFERRED LIABILITIES Note Rupees Rupees
(Restated)
Staff retirement benefits - gratuity 211 50,836,705 51,003,707
Deferred grant 21.2 25,878,625 34,011,367
76,715,330 85,015,074
21.1 Staff retirement benefits - gratuity
Liability recognized in the statement of financial
position
Present value of defined benefit obligation 50,836,705 51,003,707
Movement in the net liability
Opening balance 51,003,707 47,372,597
Charge for the year 38,381,690 37,517,768
Payment made during the year (39,009,770) (22,657,682)
Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions (494,240) (260,971)
Experience adjustments 955,318 (10,968,005)
50,836,705 51,003,707




(B

Allawasaya Textile and Finishing Mills Limited

2025 2024
Changes in present value of defined benefit Rupees Rupees
obligation (Restated)
Opening defined benefit obligation 51,003,707 47,372,597
Current service cost 33,735,614 31,660,658
Past service cost 2 =
Interest cost 4,646,076 5,857,110
Benefits paid (39,009,770) (22,657,682)
Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions (494,240) (260,971)
Experience adjustments 955,318 (10,968,005)
50,836,705 51,003,707
Charge for the year
Current service cost 33,735,614 31,660,658
Interest cost 4,646,076 5,857,110
38,381,690 37,517,768
Allocation of charge for the year
Cost of sales 35,447,675 36,154,361
Administrative expenses 2,934,015 1,363,407
38,381,690 37,517,768
Total remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of plan obligation:
Acturial losses from changes in financial assumptions (494,240) (260,971)
Experience adjustments 955,318 (10,968,005)
461,078 (11,228,976)
Average duration of liability 6 years 6 years

As per actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2025 by Nauman Associates using Projected Unit Credit
Method, the following significant assumptions have been used for valuation of defined benefit obligation of the
Company:

2025 2024
- Discount rate 11.75% 14.75%
- Expected increase in eligible salary 10.75% 13.75%
- Average expected remaining working life time 6 years 6 years
- Mortality rate SLIC (2001-2005) SLIC (2001-2005)

Expected expense for the next year
The expected expense to the gratuity scheme for the next year works out to Rs. 38.39 million.

If the discount rate is 100 basis points higher / (lower), the defined benefit obligation would decrease to Rs.
47,780,841 / (increase to Rs. 54,309,169).

If the expected rate of salary increases / (decreases) by 100 basis points, the defined henefit ohligation would
increase to Rs. 54,450,996 / (decrease to Rs. 47,596,316).

Furthermore in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position.

The gratuiy scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Longevity risk: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. The risk is
measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population.

Salary increase risk: The risk arises when the actual final salary increases higher than the expectation and
impacts the liability accordingly.

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to the
benefit obligation. The movement of liability can go either way.
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2025 2024

DEFERRED GRANT Note Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 42,847,823 -
Recognized during the year = 51,690,687
Amortized during the year (8,836,456) (8,842,864)
Closing balance 34,011,367 42,847,823
Less: current portion 8,132,742 8,836,456
Non current portion 25,878,625 34,011,367
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors 22.1 367,648,369 383,327,926
Accrued liabilities 136,913,188 107,906,794
Workers' profit participation fund 22.2 - -
Workers' welfare fund 14,857,112 14,857,112
Provision for GIDC 22.3 36,040,531 36,040,531
Advance from customers 457,835,422 145,797,681
Tax deducted at source 16,618,982 21,355,535
Sales tax payable 29,825,953 17,569,432
Other payables 87,860 62,860

1,059,827,417 726,917,871
It includes due to associated undertakings relating to purchase of raw material in hormal course of business.

Detail of balances due is as follows:

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees
Allawasaya Spinning Mills (Private) Limited 40 38,223,895 61,042,595
Workers Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance - 14,328,588
Interest on funds utilized in company's business - 2,590,334
Allocation for the year - -
Paid during the year - (16,918,922)
Closing balance - -
On August 13, 2020 the Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP) through its order declared GIDC Act an intra vires to

the constitution and directed all the industrial and commercial entities to pay the Cess that have become due up
to July 31, 2020. However, as a concession, the same was allowed to be recovered in twenty four equal monthly
installments starting from August 01, 2020. The Company has been granted stay by High Court through its
order September 09,2021 from making those installments.

The Company opted to recognize the Cess as payable in twenty four equal monthly installments is in
accordance with the provision of 1AS 37.

2025 2024
ACCRUED MARKUP Note Rupees Rupees
Short term borrowings 11,264,588 39,368,741
Long term borrowings 10,418,008 9,410,923
21,682,596 48,779,664
SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Secured
Cash Finance 24.1 118,406,000 413,788,786
Running finance 24.2 222,675,804 318,084,539
341,081,804 731,873,325
Cash finance facilities have been obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited and Habib Metro Bank Limited having

limit aggregate to Rs.162.12 million of which facilities remain un utilized at the year end amounts to Rs.159.446
million (2024: 561.3 million). These facilities are obatained for working capital requirements, and are secured
against pledge of cotton bales, fiber, and yarn in lock and key under bank's muccaddum and promissiory note
along with personal guarantee of directors with perscnal net worth statement.These facilities carry mark up at
the rates ranging from 12.22% to 23.04% per annum (2024: 21.24% to 24.7% per annum).
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Running finance facilities have been obtained from Bank Al Habib Limited, Habib Bank Limited and Habib Metro
Bank Limited aggregate to Rs.176.7 million of which facilities remain unutilize at the year end amounts to
Rs.164.26 million (2024 17.2 million). These facilities are obtained for working capital requirements, and are
secured against joint pari passu charge over current assets of the company and personal guarantee of
directors. These facilities carry mark up at the rates ranging from 12.38% to 23.49% per annum (2024: 22.51%
to 24.41% per annum).

2025 2024
PROVISION FOR TAXATION Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 79,615,257 50,334,653
Provision made during the year 54,418,921 76,478,174

134,034,178 126,812,827

Adjustments against completed assessments (76,478,174) (47,197,570)
Prior year - -

57,556,004 79615257

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingencies

The Company has filed a writ petition against water and sanitation agency (WASA) Multan regarding special
notice dated December 22, 2004 in which the authority has demanded a sum of Rs. 4.1 million of the arrears of
water effluent discharge. The Company is of opinion that it is a spinning mill and has not undertaken a job of
weaving and finishing so there is no effluent discharge of water from the unit. The Lahore High Court through
order no. C.M.No.2 of 2004 had ordered that impugned notice shall remain suspended till final order.
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27. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Local
-Yarn
- Viscose
- Polyster
- Cotton
- Waste

Less: sales tax

28. COST OF GOODS SOLD

Raw materials consumed
Fuel and power

Salaries, wages and benefits
Depreciation

Stores and spares consumed
Packing material consumed
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance

Adjustment of work in process
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured

Finished goods
Opening stock
Closing stock

28.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock
Purchases (including direct expenses) - net

Closing stock

Cotton cess

Note

28.1

28.2
5.1.1

28.3

2025
Rupees

2024
Rupees

5,098,672,686

6,775,573,586

10,818,700 -
3,386,520 .
. 34,601,821
24,268,189 28,184,811
5,137,146,095 6,838,360,218
(783,632,455) (720,106,262)

4,353,513,640

6,118,253,956

2,827,794,654 4,027,010,913
703,821,638 909,031,291
405,678,266 472,817,132
74,820,658 76,260,438
61,944,080 76,553,964
61,098,098 70,299,729
6,917,940 6,145,942
2,363,004 2,078,317
4,144,438,338 5,640,197,726
33,313,644 40,802,995

(31,260,849) (33,313,644)
2,052,795 7,489,351
4,146,491,133 5,647,687,077
159,418,616 356,047,893

(105,976,113) (159,418,616)
53,442,503 197,529,277
4,199,933,636 5,845,216,354
317,262,236 537,024,026

2,823,711,480

3,806,336,574

3,140,973,716
(314,953,664)

4,343,360,600
(317,262,236)

2,826,020,052
1,774,602

4,026,098,364
912,549

2,827,794,654

4,027,010,913

28.2 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 35.44 million (2024: Rs. 29.46 million) in respect of gratuity.

28.3 Itincludes waste stock amounting to Rs. 3.69 million (2024: Rs. 9.86 million).

29. OTHER INCOME

Interest income on TFCs

Amortization of deferred grant

Scrap Sale

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Rental income

Gain on other financial assets

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
2,927,272 3,562,435
8,836,456 8,842,864
- 483,031
92,160,444 -
3,223,558 =
- 81,390
107,147,730 12,969,720
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DISTRIBUTION AND MARKETING EXPENSES
Commission on sale of yarn

Commission on sale of Viscose

Salaries and benefits

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Directors' remuneration
Salaries and benefits
Vehicles running and maintenance
Depreciation

Travelling and conveyance
Communication

Auditors' remuneration
Legal and professional
Fee and subscription
Insurance

Printing and stationery
Entertainment

Rent, rates and taxes
Donation

Repairs and maintenance
Advertisement

Others

Salaries and benefits include Rs. 2.93 million (2024: Rs. 1.36 million) in respect of gratuity.

This includes directors' travelling amounting to Nill (2024: Rs. 0.28 million).

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

- Statutory audit fee

- Half yearly review

- Review report on compliance with CCG
- Certificate for CDC and free float shares
- Income tax return fee

- Out of pocket expenses

OTHER EXPENSES

Loss on sale of property plant and equipment
Allowance for expected credit losses

FINANCE COST

Mark up on short term borrowings

Mark up on long term borrowings

Bank and other charges

Bank guarantee commission

Interest on Workers' profit participation fund

REVENUE TAX

Minimum taxes

2025 2024

Note Rupees Rupees

16,910,050 29,369,986
14,350 -
13,586,428 10,710,044
30,510,828 40,080,030
47,708,945 36,820,310
31.1 25,924,716 22,567,134
13,656,068 13,258,164
5.1.1 3,373,034 4,210,534
31.2 1,510,677 1,440,133
2,520,236 2,176,285
31.3 1,935,000 1,935,000
10,241,844 1,820,717
2,939,530 2,906,484
1,690,140 1,940,048
1,497,926 1,375,942
1,464,546 1,758,031
1,379,426 761,988
- 322,176
628,000 422,955
460,950 592,262
549,813 87,000
117,480,851 94,395,163
2025 2024

Rupees Rupees
1,150,000 1,150,000
200,000 200,000
100,000 100,000
200,000 200,000
125,000 125,000
160,000 160,000
1,935,000 1,935,000
- 359,206
4,448,100 12,257,349
4,448,100 12,616,555
82,899,527 218,056,826
63,258,747 39,369,373
3,778,441 11,790,541
406,108 442,226
- 2,590,334
150,342,823 272,249,300
54,418,921 76,478,174
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34.1 This represents provision for minimum tax under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The
provision for minimum tax has been recognised as levy in these financial statements as per the
requirements of IFRIC 21 / IAS 37 and guide on IAS 12 issued by ICAP.

35, TAXATION 2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Deferred tax 20.1 (26,642,513) 39,955,445
35.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
2025 2024
Applicable tax rate 29% 29%
Loss hefore revenue taxes and income tax (42,054,868) (126,642,661)
Tax on accounting profit before tax - -
Effect of deferred tax (26,642,513) 39,955,445
Taxation (26,642,513) 39,955,445

35.2 The Company has filed Income Tax Return up to tax year 2024 which is deemed assessed as per Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001.

36 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(Loss) / profit for the year Rupees (69,831,276) (249,767,345)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares Number 800,000 800,000
(Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted Rupees (87.29) (312.21)

36.1 There is no dilutive effect on the basic profit per share of the Company.
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37 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

37.1

37.2

37.2.1

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

Credit risk
Liquidity risk
Market risk

This note presents information about the Company’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Company’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Company’'s management of
capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these financial statements.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's
risk management framework. The Board is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company'’s risk
management policies.

The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by
specialist teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy
that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes shall be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks.

The Company's Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's
risk management policies and procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework
in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Audit Committee is assisted in its oversight role by
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad-hoc reviews of risk management controls and
procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit Committee.

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter parties
fail completely to perform as contracted. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 363.37 million (2024: Rs.
308.09 million), the financial assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 363.37 million (2024:
Rs. 308.09 million). The Company manages credit risk in trade debts by assigning credit limits to its
customers and thereby does not have significant exposure to any individual customer.

Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts, loans and advances and bank balances.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure
to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

Financial assets
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 5,337,497 5,337,497
Trade debts 337,503,710 282,144,194
Loans and advances 2,976,438 2,708,366
Other financial assets 15,000,000 15,000,000
Trade deposit 1,605,311 1,605,311
Bank balances 953,268 1,301,949
363,376,224 308,097,317

Credit risk related to receivables

The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining
sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.
The Company’s exposure is continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is
spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are
reviewed and approved by the management annually.
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Trade debts consist of a large number of diversified customers. Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on
the financial condition of accounts receivable and, where appropriate, provision is made. The Company
does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any Company of

counterparties having similar characteristics. The Company defines counterparties as having similar
characteristics if they are related entities.

Credit risk related to bank balances

In respect of bank balances, credit risk on bank balances is limited as they are placed with local banks
having good credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies.

Rating
Short term Long term Rating agency

The Bank of Punjab A1+ AA+ PACRA
Askari Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA
Allied Bank Limited A-T+ AAA PACRA
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA
Bank Al Habib Limited AT+ AAA PACRA
Faysal Bank Limited A1+ AA+ VIS

Habib Bank Limited AT+ AAA VIS

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ AA+ PACRA
United Bank Limited A1+ AAA VIS

Samba Bank limited A1 AA PACRA
National Bank of Pakistan A1+ AAA PACRA
MCB Bank Limited A1+ AAA PACRA

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Company's
short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial
assets and liabilities. Note 37.3.2 below sets out details of additional unutilized facilities that the Company
has at its disposal to further reduce liquidity risk.

Liquidity and interest risk table

The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The
tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Weighted average effective rate  Upto 1 year 1 -5 years Total

June 30, 2025 Rupees Rupees Rupees

Financial liabifities

interest bearing

Long term loans 4% to 28% 139,888,787 352,394,388 492,283,175

Lease liability 13.50% to 13.58% 3,418,263 2,341,489 5,759,752

Short term borrowings  12.22% 10 23.49% 341,081,804 - 341,081,804

Non interest bearing

Unclaimed dividend 1,029,630 - 1,029,630

Accrued markup 21,682,596 - 21,682,596

Trade and other payables 504,649,417 - 504,649,417
1,011,750,497 354,735,877 1,366,486,374
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Weighted Average effective rate  Upto 1 year 1 -5 years Total

June 30, 2024 Rupees Rupees Rupees

Financial liabilities

Interest bearing

Long term loans 4% 10 24.47% 125,532,654 163,208,223 288,740,877

Lease liability 23.08% to 24.46% 2,693,918 5,886,705 8,580,623

Short term borrowings 21.24% to 24.7% 731,873,325 - 731,873,325

Non interest bearing

Unclaimed dividend 1,029,630 - 1,029,630

Accrued markup 48,779,664 - 48,779,664

Trade and other payables 491,297,580 - 491,297,580
1,401,206,771 169,094,928 1,570,301,699

Financing facilities
Secured bank loan facilities with various maturity dates which may be extended by mutual agreement:
2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
- amount utilized 341,081,804 731,873,325
- amount unutilized 968,918,196 578,126,675
Market risk management

Market Risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices will affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The
ohjective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters while optimizing returns.

interest rate risk management

Interest / markup rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest / markup rates will affect the
value of financial instruments. The Company has significant amount of interest based financial assets and
financial liabilities which are largely based on variable interest / markup rates, therefore the Company has
to manage the related finance cost which exposes it to the risk of SBP rate , 3 months and 6 months
KIBOR. Since the impact on interest rate exposure is significant to the Company, management is
considering the alternative arrangement to manage interest rate exposure in future.

interest rate sensitivity

If interest rates had been 100 basis points higher / lower and all other variables were held constant, the
Company's (loss) / profit for the year ended June 30, 2025 would increase / decrease by Rs. 8.39 million
(2024: Rs. 13.69 million). This is mainly attributable to the Company's exposure to interest rates on its
variable rate borrowings.

The Company does not recognized any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit

and loss therefore, a change in interest rate would not affect Statement of profit or loss.
Foreign exchange risk management

Foreign currency risk arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions with foreign
undertakings and balances held in foreign currency. However, the Company is not exposed to foreign
currency risk on assets and liabilities as it does not have foreign debtors or creditors.

Equity price risk management

The Company is not exposed to equity price risks arising from equity investments as the Company has no
such investment held for trading purpose.

Determination of fair values

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate

their fair values.
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Fair value estimation

IFRS 13 requires fair value measurement disclosures using following three level fair value hierarchy that
reflects the significance of the inputs used in measuring fair value of financial instruments.

Information about fair value hierarchy and asset classified under the hierarchy as follows.

- Level 1; Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. drive from prices). The Company has no items to
report in this level.

- Level 3: Inputs for asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value of non-financial asset measured at fair value

Fair value of property, plant and equipment

The company's Land-Freehold, Building on Free-hold Land, Plant & Machinery, Electric Installation, Power
house at revalued amount, being fair value at the date of revaluation using market basis, less any
subsequent depreciation and subsequent impairment losses, if any. The fair value measurment of the
company's Free-hold Land, Plant & Machinery, Electric Installation and Power house as at June 30, 2025
were performed by K.G. (Private) Limited (valuer), an independent valuer is listed on panel of Pakistan
Banks Association with proper qualification and experience in the fair value measurment of property, plant
and equipment.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
As at June 30, 2025
Freehold land 614,725,857 614,725,857
Building freehold land 298,735,650 298,735,650
Plant & machinery 716,750,000 716,750,000
Power house 279,162,470 279,162,470
1,909,373,977 1,909,373,977
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Rupees
As at June 30, 2024
Freehold land 805,943,000 805,943,000
Building freehold land 359,691,789 359,691,789
Plant & machinery 1,010,674,921 1,010,674,921
Power house 80,304,021 80,304,021
2,256,613,731 2,256,613,731

The fair value of of financial instruments are appoximate to their carrying value. There were no transfer
between levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.
Financial instruments by category

The Company finances its operation through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a
view to maintaining an approximate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk. Taken as a
whole, the Company's risk arising from financial instruments is limited as there is no significant exposure
to price and cash flow risk in respect of such instruments.

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied for line items as below:

2025 2024
Assets categorized at amortized cost Rupees Rupees
Long term deposits 5,337,497 5,337,497
Trade debts 337,503,710 282,144,194
Loans and advances 2,976,438 2,708,366
Trade deposit 1,605,311 1,605,311
Other financial asset 15,000,000 15,000,000
Cash and bank bhalances 7,683,856 3,786,864

370,106,812 310,682,232
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Liabilities categorized at amortized cost

Long term loan

Lease liability

Current portion of long term loan
Current portion of lease liabilities
Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables
Unclaimed dividend

Accrued markup

2025
Rupees

140,251,588
2,341,489
8,132,742
3,418,263

341,081,804

504,649,417
1,029,630

21,682,596

2024
Rupees

111,663,545
5,886,705
8,836,455
2,693,918

731,873,325

491,297,580
1,029,630

48,779,664

1,022,587,529

1,402,060,822

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT DISCLOSURE

The Company's objectives, policies and processes for managing capital are as follows:

- The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
- The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the company's ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

- Consistently with others in the industry, the company monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debt (as shown in the SOFP) less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all

components of equity (i.e., share capital and unappropriated profit).
- The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at June 30 were as follows:

2025 2024
Rupees Rupees
Total debt 616,448,927 711,110,286
Less: Cash and cash at Bank 214,991,948 314,297,675
Net debt 831,440,875 1,025,407,961
Total equity 1,477,718,500 1,480,723,719
Adjusted capital 2,309,159,375 2,506,131,680
Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio 36.01% 40.92%
REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES
Managerial remuneration Utilities
Partivuiars 2025 | 2024 2025 2024
------------------------ Rupees --------=-----mmemmeee
Chief Executive 10,800,000 9,159,678 3,488,043 2,559,400
Directors 21,600,000 17,719,356 10,900,902 10,197,665
Executive 6,561,225 6,554,375 - -
38,961,225 33,433,409 14,388,945 12,757,065
Particulars

No of persons

2025 2024
Chief Executive 1 1
Directors 2 2
Executive 2 2

During the year, meeting fee of Rs. 920,000 (2024: Rs. 1,060,000) was paid to the directors.

The Chief Executive and directors are also provided with the Company owned and maintained cars and

telephones at their residences.
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TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertakin
personnel. The Company in the normal course of bu
parties. Amounts due to related parties are shown under tra
remuneration of Chief Executive, director and excutives (note 39
Allawsaya Spinning Mills (Private) Limited
directorship.Other significant transactions wit

gs, directors of the Company and key management

2025
Rupees

Transactions with associated undertakings (due to common directorship)

Allawasaya Spinning Mills (Private) Limited

Purchase of raw material
Sale of viscose

10,818,700

siness carries out transactions with various related
de and other payable (note 22.1),°
) and loan from directors (note 17).
is associated undertaking based on common

h related parties are as follows:

2024
Rupees

61,042,595

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on agreed terms and conditions.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR COMPANIES NOT ENGAGED IN SHARIAH
NON-PERMISSBILE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Following information has been disclosed as required'under amended part | clause VIl of Fourth Schedule
to the Companies Act, 2017 as amended via S.R.0.1 278 (1) / 2024 dated August 15, 2024:

2025 2024
Nota: = ieeeesomeees Rupees -======-=-
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Liabilities
Short term Financing as per Islamic mode . =
Interest on mark-up accrued on
conventional loan 23
Assets
Shariah compliant short term investment & =
Shariah compliant bank balances 120,416 120,416

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

21,682,596 48,775,664

Revenue from contracts with customers 27 4,353,513,640 6,118,253,956
Profit paid on Islamic mode of financing - -
Dividend Income

Shariah compliant = =
Shariah non-compliant - =
Interest income

Shariah compliant 29 - -
Shariah non-compliant 29 2,927,272 3,562,435
Other income - Other

Shariah compliant 29 92,160,444 -
Shariah non-compliant 29 8,836,456 8,842,864

Relationship with Shariah-compliant financial institutions:
The Company has relationships with shariah compliant banks in respect of bank balances.

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION 2025 2024

Number of spindles installed 45528 46,488
Number of spindles worked 37848 46,488
Number of shifts worked 822 811
Capacity of yarn at 20's count

on the basis of utilization Kgs 12,645,169 16,251,192
Actual production of yarn at 20's count Kgs 12,607,115 16,183,418
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Reasons for increase

It is difficult to describe precisely the production capacity in spinning mills since it fluctuates widely
depending on various factors such as count of yarn spun, spindles speed, twist and raw materials used,
etc. It also varies according to the pattern of production adopted in a particular year.

NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

2025 2024
Number
Total number of employees 896 977
Average number of employees during the year 828 975

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
| At June 30,2024 |[ Cashinflows || Cashoutflows || AtJune 30,2025 |

------------------------ RUDEES ~osssmncrivmssrannninios
Long term loans 288,740,876 340,871,456 (137,329,158) 492283174
Short term borrowings 731,873,325 2,017,350,612 (2,408,142,133) 341,081,804
Lease liabilities 8,580,623 - (2,820,871) 5,759,752
Unclaimed dividend 1,029,630 - - 1,029,630

1,030,224,454 2,358,222,068 (2,548,292,163) 840,154,360
CORRESPONDING FIGURES

The preparation and presentation of these financial statements for the year ended june 30, 2025 is in
accordance with the requirments of IFRSs.

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were approved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the
Company in its meeting held on _October 03, 2025

GENERAL

Figures in the financial statements have been rounded-off to the nearest rupee except stated otherwise.

Sd/- Sd/- Sd/-
Mian Muhammad Alamgir Jamil Khan Mian Idrees Ahmed Sheikh Sohail Nadeem
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING OF THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY AS ON JUNE 30, 2025

Number of Shareholding Total Percentage of
Shareholders From To Shares held Total Capital
116 1 100 5,398 0.675
17 101 500 4210 0.526
7 501 1,000 6,160 0.770
11 1.001 5.000 33.961 4245
0 5.001 10.000 0 0.000
0 10,001 15.000 0 0.000
4 15.001 20.000 75,482 9.435
2 20.001 25000 43.574 5447
2 25.001 30.000 55,058 6.882
4 30.001 35.000 132,182 16.523
0 35.001 40,000 0 0.000
1 40.001 45.000 44 156 5.520
0 45,001 50,000 0 0.000
2 50.001 70,000 127,339 15.917
2 70.001 100.000 144 262 18.033
1 100.001 130,000 128.218 16.027
169 800,000 100.000
Serial Categories of Number of Number of Percentage
Number Shareholders _ Shareholders Shares held .
1 Individuals | B ml63amu 820745 S 0097
2 Joint Stock Companies e © 80 & ¥ £__8 150 0.02
3 Investment Companies; A St S #1100 § 0.01
4 Others ' 2w 4 . ] i 0.00
TOTAL 169 800,000 100.00

Trade in shares of the company carried out by a Director, CEO or Executive. their spouses,

minor children and substantial shareholders during 2024-25

Date of Transaction
S.No. Name of Persen with Description Rate Form of
Date Nature No.of Shares Fa Share | Market
(PKR} %
Certificates
1 Mr. Idrees Ahmed Sheikh (Director) 03.12.2024 Buy 200 1,395/- | Physical |Ready
2 Mr. |drees Ahmed Sheikh {Director) 06.01.2025 Buy 850 1,385/- | Physical | Ready

Except the detail given above ne trade in shares was reperted by a Director, CEO or Executive, their spouses, minor children and
substantial shareholders from Juby 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 in the shares of the Company.
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON JUNE 30, 2025

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Shareholders' Category

Number of
Shareholders

Number of
Shares held

Percentage of
Shares held

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouse
and minor Children

DIRECTORS

Misn Muhsmmad Jamil

Mrs. Nusrat Jamil

Mian ldreses Ahmed Sheikh

Misn Taugir Ahmed Sheikh

Mirs. Bushra Taugir

Mrs. Misbah tdrees Sheikh

Mr. Abdul Rehman Qureshi

Mir. Nazir Ahmad Khan

Mir. Muhammad Ashraf Khsn Durrani
Mr. Imran Husssin

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Mr. Mohammad Alamgir Jamil Khan

DirectorsC.E.O's Spouses & Migqrr/c'hildren

Mrs. Ssrah Hajra Khan | n .

Mr. Mohammsd Hadi Alamgir khm th?cugb h’is
maother Mrs. Ssrah Hajra Khsn 'Minc'- - W,

RtV

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties

NIT and ICP

Investment Corporaticn of Pskistan
Barks Development Financial Institutions,
Institutions

Insurance Compsaniies
Modarabas snd Mutusl Funds

General Public- 3. Local
b. Foreign

entrai Depository Compsany of FPakistan Limited

Others (Sponsors and
CTAL

other relatives)

Sharehclders helding 109 or more voting interest
Mian ldrees Ahmed Sheikh

Non Banking Financial

1 71,814 298
1 86,876 8.26
1 128218 16.03
1 24 168 4.27
1 23,404 253
1 72,448 S.06
1 2,500 0.21
1 2,500 0.21
1 2,500 0.31
1 2,500 0.31
1 80,463 7.58
o 1 &P 34980 4.37
et 1 P 1,685 0.21
NIL .
2 100 0.01
NIL =
NIL .
NIL -
92 10,367 1.30
NIL 5
40 2,851 0.36
22 282,848 35 33
169 800,000 100.00
1 128,218 16.03
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CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
AS ON JUNE 30, 2025

Number of Shareholding Total Number
Shareholders From To of Shares held
37 1 100 781
1 101 500 160
2 501 1,000 1,910
40 2,851
Categories of Number of Number of
Shareholders Shareholders Shares held Percentage
Individuals 36 2,696 94.56
Joint Stock Companies 2 150 5.26
Others 2 5 0.18
40 2,851 100.00
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FORM OF PROXY

FOLIO NO.

=

]

being a member of ATTAWASAYA TERNTITEAND FINISHING AMITT.S TTIMITET, hereb |

appoint FOLIO N0

of

AS mYy proxy in myv absence to attend and vote for me and on mv behalf at the

(Ordinary or / and Extraordinary as the caze mav be) (zeneral Meeting of the Company

tobeheld on the dav of 20

and at any adjournment thereof.

Aswitness myv hand this

dav of 2025

Sioned bv the said Please affix Revenue

Stamp Bs.50/-
In pressnce of

Witnesa:

Name:
Address:
CHNIC No.

Signature:

IMPORTANT

Thiz form of proxy, duly complsted, must be depostted at the Compeny's Begistered office

at Allawasava Sguare, Mumtazabad Industrial Area, Vehari Eoad, Multan
notless than 45 hours befors the time for holding the mesting.




www.allawasaya.com

ALLAWASAYA TEXTILEANDFINISHING MILLS LIMITED
Allawasaya Square, Mumtazabad Industrial Area,
Vehari Road, Multan, Pakistan.
Phone: (061) 4233624-286
Website: www.allawasaya.com
E-mail: atm@allawasaya.com



